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JUDGE HATCHER: All right. Good norning
all. It is 9:00am W wll be starting day two of
our evidentiary hearing in the general rate case of
the Enpire District Electric Conpany, doing business
as Liberty. This is Case Nunber ER-2024-0261.

Today we are noving on to our schedul e,
which will be first, Issue 1, Capital Structure, ROCE,
and Cost of Debt. Following that, we will go to our
ot her issues, which are designated as
non- cr oss-exam nati on i ssues.

| have sent an e-nmil to the parties
i ndicating that the Comm ssion will have questions on
| ssue 5, Materials, Supplies, and Inventory; and al so
the first instance of Regul atory Assets and
Liabilities that is Issues 9 through 14.

Wth that set, | believe we are starting
W th opening statenents or m ni opening statenents for
this issue, so | believe that will be the Conpany. |If
you'd like to go ahead, the floor is yours.

MR. FLAHERTY: Thank you, Judge. Good
nor ni ng, Judge, Conm ssioners. My it please the
Comm ssion. Janes G Fl aherty, appearing on behal f of
t he applicant, Enpire.

This is the first and perhaps the | ast

time | will get a chance to speak to you directly, so

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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| wanted to take the opportunity to thank you for
allowing ne to appear before you in this rate case. |
have been doing this for over 40 years, nostly before
t he Kansas Corporation Commission, so it is a pleasure
to get to appear before another regul atory body.

You shoul d be proud of your staff.
They' ve been both professional and cordial to ne,
especially given the fact that | am from Kansas.

As -- as in all rate cases, the
Comm ssion is asked to determ ne the appropriate
aut horized rate of return. The authorized rate of
return is the profit that a utility is allowed an
opportunity to earn a rate of return on, the
I nvestnent it has nade so it can provide utility
service to customers.

As you know, a part of nmaking that
determnation is for you to approve the capital
structure. The capital structure, in sinple terns, is
how the utility funds itself.

Autility funds itself just like other
busi nesses do. It uses a mx of borrowed noney t hat
is referred to debt, and investor funding that is
referred to as equity. Each utility will fund itself
using a percentage of debt and a percentage of equity.

The Comm ssion is asked to determ ne what those

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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percentages are for the utility as part of the
rat e- maki ng process.

In this case, the Conpany, Staff, MECG
Renew M ssouri and the Union have agreed that the
filed global settlenment is the proper resolution of
this case, including the cost-of-capital issues.

However, before the gl obal settlenent was
reached in this case, Enpire and Staff both agreed in
their pre-filed testinony that the Comm ssion shoul d
use Enpire's actual percentage of debt and actual
percentage of equity in the capital structure to be
used by the Comm ssion to set rates in this case.

The -- those percentages are 53 percent equity and 47
percent debt.

It is inportant to point out that in
19 -- or I'msorry, in 2016 when Enpire was acquired
by Al gonquin Power and Utility Corporate, or APUC, and
Enpire was going to be funded going forward indirectly
by APUC and directly by APUC S entity that owns Enpire
and a nunber of other US utilities called LUCo, that
APUC agreed in setting rates going forward, that
whi chever entity, Enpire, LUCo or APUC, had the nost
econom cal capital structure, it would be that capital
structure that would be used to set rates.

In this case, Enpire and Staff reviewed

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179
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the capital structures of Enpire, APUC and LUCo and
both determ ned that Enpire's capital structure was
t he nost econom cal .

In the absence of the global settlenent,
once you determ ne the proper percentage of debt and
equity, the next step is to determ ne the cost of debt
and the cost of the equity.

In their pre-filed testinony, the cost of
the debt used by Enpire and Staff was the actual cost
of Enpire's debt. As of the end of the test year and
t he Septenber 30th, 2024 update period, Enpire's cost
of debt was 4.22 percent. Inits true-up filing,

Enpi re included a planned 2025 debt issuance that
woul d increase Enpire's overall cost of debt to
4. 53 percent.

As you know from other rate cases, the
nore difficult task for you is to determ ne the proper
cost of equity. It is -- it is nore difficult in
determ ning the cost of equity because in determning
the cost of equity, the Conm ssion nust set a return
on equity at a level where it believes, based upon the
evidence in the record, where investors or
sharehol ders will want to continue to fund the
utility.

As you know from ot her rate cases, the

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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utility, Staff and OPC usually differ on what the
proper cost of equity should be for the utility, and
this case is no different.

Enpire's expert, M. Dane, who you wl|
have avail abl e to ask questions about this inportant
I ssue during this hearing, has pre-filed testinony
recommendi ng that the cost of equity, or what is
typically referred to as a return on equity, should be
sonmewher e between 9.75 percent and 11 percent and his
specific recommendation is 10 percent.

Staff's expert, M. Walters, has
pre-filed testinony recomending a return on equity of
9.5 percent.

OPC s expert, M. Mirray, is recommendi ng
a return on equity of 9.25 percent.

Once the Comm ssion determ nes the
percentage of equity and percentage of debt and the
cost of the return on equity and the cost of debt,
then in order to determne the overall authorized rate
of return, you nust weigh the percentages with the
respecti ve cost.

Brian, if | could have you turn to the
next slide. And | have handed out to the Judge, the
Comm ssioners and the parties a copy of this --

actual ly one-page slide presentation for you.

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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This slide shows a page in Staff
Wtness's Walters' true-up rebuttal testinony at page
two. And M. Walters' true-up rebuttal testinony has
been premarked and admtted into the record as
Exhi bit 178.

In M. Walters' table he shows Staff's
recommended overall rate of return and how it was
cal cul ated using the steps that | just went through.
Under the Description colum, he shows how Enpire is
funded using common equity and | ong-term debt.

Under his Weight colum, he shows the
percentage of equity and percentage of debt in
Enpire's capital structure; 53 percent fromequity and
47 percent from debt.

Under the Cost colum, M. Walters shows
his recommended cost of equity of 9.5 percent and
Enpire's cost of debt of 4.53 percent, which is the
debt cost included in M. Dane's true-up testinony and
accepted by the Staff.

Then under the final colum, he shows the
wei ghted cost of the capital in order to calculate the
overall rate of return for Enpire. |In order to get
the wei ghted cost of equity, you take the percentage
of equity in the capital structure of 53 percent,

or .53, and nultiply that by M. Walters' reconmended

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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cost of equity of 9.5 percent to get 5.04 percent.

In order to get the weighted cost of
debt, you take the percentage of debt in the capital
structure of 47 percent, or .47, and multiply that by
the cost of debt of 4.53 to get 2.14 percent after
roundi ng.

Finally, to get the overall rate of
return for Enpire, you add the weighted cost of equity
of 5.04 percent, plus the weighted cost of debt of
2.13 percent to get 7.16 percent, and that is
M. Walters' recommendation in this case.

If | were to show you that cal cul ati on
using M. Dane's recommendation, there would be a
change in the cost of equity, his 10 percent instead
of M. Walters' 9.5 percent, change in the weighted
cost of equity, and the overall rate of return would
have gone up from 7.16 percent to the 7.43 percent
that M. Dane is recomending in this case.

Now, | used M. Walters' recommendation
so | could conpare that to the stated overall rate of
return for applicable nmechani sns and/ or processes that
require the utilization of an overall rate of return
that is included in paragraph five of the
Non- Unani nous G obal Stipul ation and Agreenent.

| do want to make it clear, and the

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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stipulation nmakes it clear that -- and specifically
states in that paragraph five that the parties were
unable to agree on an overall rate of return in
arriving at the agreed-upon revenue requirenent.

However, where Enpire is required to use
an overall rate of return for mechanisns |ike PlISA
bet ween when this rate case decision is made and when
the next rate case decision is made, the rate of
return agreed to by the parties will be 7.1 -- I'm
sorry, 7.01 percent if the stipulation is approved.
This is below the 7.16 percent rate of return that was
recommended by Staff in this case.

One |l ast point with respect to the
cost-of -capital issues. The stipulation that nearly
all the parties have entered into and presented to you
for consideration reasonably addresses the Custoner
First issues in both a constructive and very focused
manner. |t provides Enpire the necessary opportunity
to recover its investnent and expenses in Custoner
First upon a show ng that the issues have been
resol ved.

However, OPC s recommendation in this
case is neither constructive nor focused and woul d not
have resulted in a reasonable renedy. Arbitrarily

allowng the rate -- no rate increase, and that is

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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what OPC is recommending in this case, is not a
reasonabl e renedy and would |ikely have the opposite
result of making sure custoners receive efficient and
sufficient service and what is in the public interest.

|'"d be happy to answer any questions with
respect to the cost-of-capital issues. W also have
M. Dane who can answer those questions as well.

Agai n, thank you for allowi ng ne the
opportunity to appear before you and be part of this
case.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you for your
openi ng.

Before | ask for Comm ssioner questions,
| did want to nmake sure and announce for the record
t he attendance of those Conm ssioners. Wth us today
we have Chair Kayla Hahn and Conmm ssi oner Mida
Col eman. Al so on our WbEx, we have Conm ssi oner
Mtchell. And on his way in is Comm ssioner Kol kneyer
and he'll be joining us shortly.

Are there any Conm ssioner questions on
t he openi ng statenent of Enpire? Speaking of
Comm ssi oner Kol kneyer, he has joined us right at this
nonent. Thank you, sir.

Heari ng no questions, we'll nove on.

Openi ng statenent of Staff.
888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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MR. VANDERGRI FF:  May it please the
Comm ssion. Comm ssioners, Judge, | amEric
Vandergriff. Judge today -- here today with Tracy
Johnson, Staff's representatives for the Capital
Structure, Cost of Debt and Rate of Return issues.

Staff's original revenue requirenent --
or excuse ne, original recomendati on was
7.16 percent. However, we fully support the gl obal
stipulation 7.01 percent recomendation. Staff's
Wtness is Chris Walters. Please refer your Capital
Structure questions to him

I f you have questions about the gl obal
stipulation, our witness is Kinberly Bolin. Please
direct your questions to her.

Do you have any questions?

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, Counsel.

Are there any questions for
M. Vandergriff? Hearing none, thank you. |
appreci ate that.

Next, Public Counsel.

MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you. My it please
t he Conmm ssi on.

| feel conpelled to respond to the
Conpany' s openi ng about Public Counsel's position that

t he Comm ssion should not increase rates until

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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Li berty's service is adequate.

That's not an arbitrary decision. |
think it's a very forceful nessage to the Conpany to
get your ducks in a row before you cone in and ask for
a rate increase.

As to the rate-of-return issues, the
Conpany's position and Staff's for cost of debt and
capital structure are both based on a hypotheti cal
prom ssory note between an af- -- affiliates --
bet ween Enpire and one of its affiliates that as of
this date, to ny know edge, has never been executed.

What Public Counsel has done is relied on
the debt issuances that Enpire's i medi ate parent,

Li berty UWilities, has put out there -- hang on a
mnute -- we're recommendi ng an enbedded cost of debt
of 4.03 percent, which is based on all third-party
debt Liberty Utilities guarantees and the regul ated
subsidiary debt it consolidates on its bal ance sheet.

So it's based on debt information. It's
not a mani pul ation that's done by how nuch debt is
I ngested into Enpire itself through affiliate
transacti ons.

As to the capital structure, we're
recomendi ng one that's based on what Al gonquin has

communi cated to the investor community that it

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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t ar gets.

And M. Miurray, as he's done in past
cases, has done an analysis of cost of equity and then
based his recommendation for return on equity in
th- -- this case on that analysis. And that's what
we' re recommendi ng the Conmmi ssion adopt in this case.
Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. WIIians.

Are there any questions on the opening
statenent of Public Counsel? Hearing none, we'll nove
on. Qur next opening statenent wll be M dwest Energy
Consuners G oup, MECG

MR OPITZ: Just bri- -- briefly, Your
Honor. May | give ny statenent froma seated
posi tion?

MECG is a signatory to the Non-Unani nous
Stipulation. The terns contained therein are a
reasonable result in this case with a path forward and
benefits for all custoners.

Contained within that | believe is a
resolution of this issue on RCE and on capital
structure within our revenue requirenment increase.

And | ask the Comm ssion to i ssue an order along the
| i nes of approving that Non-Unani nous Stipul ation

agreenent. Thank you.

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you.

And are there any questions for
M. Opitz? Hearing none, we will go to our clean-up
hitter, M. Coffnman.

MR. COFFMAN.  Thank you, Your Honor. |
really don't have anything else to add. Consuners
Counci | supports the position of Public Counsel on
this issue. Thanks.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

Are there any questions for M. Coffnman?

Al right. W wll nove on to the
calling of witnesses. | have Dan Dane as the first
W t ness.

MR, FLAHERTY: Yes, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: Al right. M. Dane, if
you' d rai se your right hand.

(Wtness sworn.)

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. If you'l

pl ease state and spell your nanme for our court

reporter.
THE WTNESS: Sure. Daniel Dane,
D-a-n-i-e-|, Dane, D a-n-e.
JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you.
Enpire, your w tness.
MR. FLAHERTY: Thank you, Judge.
888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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DANI EL DANE,
being first duly sworn, testified as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR FLAHERTY:

Q M. Dane, who is your enployer?
A My enpl oyer is Concentric Energy
Advi sors.
Q What is your position with Concentric?
A ' mthe president of the conpany.
Q And you pre-filed testinony and schedul es

t hat have been marked as Exhibits 4, 5-P, 5-C, 6-P,

6-C and 17 and previously admtted into the record,

correct?
A Yes, that's correct.
Q And is it your understanding that the

Conpany has nodified its positions as outlined in the
G obal Non- Unani nous Stipul ati on and Agreenent filed
wi th the Conm ssion on Cctober 6th, 2025?
A Yes.

MR. FLAHERTY: Judge, |'d tender M. Dane
for cross-exam nation.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

And for our listeners joining us today,
I"mgoing to take a second just to reviewthe

procedures that we're going to be using on

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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Cross-exam nation today.

Specifically as nentioned, we do have a
filed Non-Unani nous Stipulation. The signatories to
t hat agreenent have agreed to not cross-exanm ne each
other's witnesses. So for that reason, we wll be
ski pping those parties on the initial round of
cross-exam nation and they will get to ask questions
I f we go back for recross-exam nation.

So with Enpire witness, we will be
ski pping MECG we'll be skipping Staff, and we will go
to Consuners Council for questions.

MR. COFFMAN.  No, thank you. | have no
guesti ons.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you, sir.

And Public Counsel.

MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you. No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

That will nove us to Commi ssi oner
questions. Are there any Conm ssioner questions for
the Enpire witness, M. Dane? And if you are on the
phone, that is *6 to unnute.

Al right. Hearing none, | don't have
any questions for M. Dane either. D d we have any --
we didn't have any cross, so we don't have any
redirect. Thank you, M. Dane. | appreciate you

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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maki ng the -- the trip out today.
THE W TNESS: Thank you.
JUDCGE HATCHER: Staff, your w tness.
M5. JOHNSON: Staff calls Chris Walters.
JUDCGE HATCHER: M. Walters, please raise
your right hand.
(Wtness sworn.)
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. Would you
pl ease state and spell your nane for our court
reporter.
THE WTNESS: M nane is Christopher
Walters, Ch-r-i-s-t-o0-p-h-e-r, Walters is
Wa-I-t-e-r-s.
JUDGE HATCHER  Staff, your w tness.
M5. JOHNSON: Thank you, Judge.
CHRI STOPHER WALTERS,
being first duly sworn, testified as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. JOHNSON:

Q Good norning, M. Wilters.
A Good nor ni ng.
Q Can you tell ne who your enployer is?
A Yes. My enployer is the firm Brubaker
and Associ ates, |ncorporated.
Q And what's your role there?
888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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A | ama principle of the firm
Q And what is your role in this case
supporting Staff?
A Staff engaged ne to assess the Conpany's

overall cost of equity and nake a recomendati on based

on ny anal ysi s.

Q And have you supported Staff of this
Comm ssion in that way before?

A On multiple engagenents | have, yes.

Q And is there a listing of that avail able

within your pre-filed testinony?

A Maybe.

Q It should be in one of your schedul es.
They' ve already been pre-admtted so I'll just verify
for you. 1Is it your understanding that your

testinony's been entered into the record as Staff's
Exhibit 121, 149, 173 and 178?

A Yes. That's ny understandi ng.

Q And are the recommendations in your
testinony effectively nodified to support the
Non- Unani nous G obal Stip and Agreenent that has been
filed in this case?

A Yes.

M5. JOHNSON: Tender the witness for

guesti ons.
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JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you.

And as discussed, we'll go directly to
Consuners Counci | .

MR. COFFMAN.  And | have no questi ons.
Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

And M. WIllianms with Public Counsel.

MR. WLLIAMS: No questions, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

That brings us to Conm ssioner questions.
Are there any Comm ssioner questions for M. Dane,
Staff's witness?

M5. JOHNSON: Judge, this is M. Walters.

JUDGE HATCHERT M. Walters. Thank you.

Heari ng none, thank you, M. Wilters

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: That will nove us to
M. Mirray.

(Wtness sworn.)

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, sir. Please
have a seat and state and spell your nanme for our
court reporter.

THE WTNESS: MW nane is David Murray,
| ast nane spelled Mu-r-r-a-y.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.
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M. WIIlianms, your wtness.
DAVI D MJURRAY,
being first duly sworn, testified as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR W LLI AVS:

Q M. Mirray, did you cause and prepare to
be filed direct, rebuttal and surrebuttal testinony
t hat has been marked for identification and already
admtted into the record as Exhibits 209, 210 and 2011
[as said]?

A | did. And let ne just clarify. The
surrebuttal included sone true-up testinony.

Q Al right. Do you have any corrections
to any of those testinonies?

A | do. On -- in ny direct testinony, and
| believe we filed this this norning in the case, but
"Il just go over themreal quick.

On page eight of ny direct, |ine 24,

I nstead of "low end,"” it should say "high end."

And then ny rebuttal testinony, page 40,
line three, that really isn't a sentence. It says:
Enpire's rate base of at least 2.5 billion.

It -- | think a proper way to wite that
Is to say: Enpire's rate base was at | east
2.5 billion as of Septenber 30th, 2024.
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Q Are those all of the corrections?
A Yes.

MR. WLLIAMS: | tender the witness for

exam nation by others.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. WIIians.

| believe our cross-exanmnation wll go
first to Consuners Council.

MR. COFFMAN:  No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

And next, M. Qpitz.

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

Then Staff.

M5. JOHNSON:.  Not hi ng.

JUDGE HATCHER: And Enpire, the Conpany.

MR. FLAHERTY: Yes, Judge. No questions.
| did want to publicly thank M. Mirray. He hel ped ne
in wth nmy bags this norning. So, thank you.

THE WTNESS: M pleasure. It was good
to see you this norning.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

And that wll take to us Conm ssioner
guestions. Are there any Conm ssi oner questions for
M. Mirray?

QUESTI ONS
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BY JUDGE HATCHER:

Q Al right. The Bench does have a
guestion. |If the Conmm ssion approves OPC s
recommendation for a zero increase in the Conpany's
revenue requirenent, is your recommended rate --
return on equity or rate of return still valid? And
pl ease expl ain that answer.

A I f the Conmm ssion adopts a zero increase,
| think that's based on a variety of factors, which
actually if you went position by position where OPC s
taken a -- you know, has -- has filed testinony, you
know, our -- our revenue requirenent wuld be above
zero.

So you're basically not con- -- you're
just considering all the difficulties that Enpire's
had and -- and OPC s position that -- that those
| ssues are severe enough to warrant a rejection of the
requested rate increase. So no, it -- you cannot
reconcile that to any of the conponents.

Q | want to make sure that | understood,
because | got a little lost in your answer.

A Sorry.

Q I f the Conmm ssion approves OPC s zero
I ncrease, what will be the rate of return or the

return on equity? What would those nunbers be?
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A
what's --
shoul d say.

Q

A

what woul d be enbedded - -

| have not done that calculation to know

or inplied, I

Al right. Thank you.

Thank you.

JUDCGE HATCHER:

we stopped for

Bench questi ons.

|1 ask once again since

Any ot her

Comm ssi oner questions for

and that wl |

Ckay.

Ve will

M. Mirray?

go to recross-exam nation

start with Consuners Council .

VR. COFFMAN:
JUDGE HATCHER:
VR OPI TZ:
JUDCGE HATCHER:
V5. JOHNSON:
JUDGE HATCHER:

No,

No, Thank you.

And then M. Opitz.

t hank you, Your Honor.
Ms.

Not hing from Staff.

And t he Conpany.

Johnson.

VR. FLAHERTY:
JUDCGE HATCHER:

THE W TNESS:

No questi ons,

Thank you,

appreci ate you being here today.

Thank you.

M. Mirray.

VR. WLLI AVS: No redirect either.

JUDCGE HATCHER:

forget that one.

THE W TNESS:
JUDCGE HATCHER:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Thank you,

| al ways

M. Mirray.

t hank you.
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Thank you, M. WIIians.

kay. | know that we have the two areas
where we are going to have Conm ssi oner questions.
However, |'d rather just go ahead and stay in the
order that we have. So that would start out with
Billing Determ nants and Rate Desi gn.

So let's go ahead and go to Billing
Det erm nants and Rate Design. Those were |ssues 107,
108, and 109. Are there any Comm ssi oner questions on
Billing Determ nants and Rate Design, |ssues 107, 108
and 109? 1'll give the Comm ssioners a second to
t hi nk about that.

And | will explain to our listeners that
because of the Non-Unani nous d obal Stipul ation, sone
of the issues the parties have agreed to submt to the
Comm ssion without cross-exam nation. This is a
separate agreenent fromthe signatories agreeing not
to cross-exam ne each other's witnesses. So for these
followmng issues, we will go directly to Conm ssi oner
guesti ons.

Last call. Conmm ssioner questions on
Billing Determ nants and Rate Designs, Issues 107 to
109. Hearing none, we wll nove on.

Next is Cash Wirking Capital, this is

| ssue 3. Are there any Conm ssioner questions on Cash

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS

www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N O O A~ W N PP

N DN D DD DNDDNN PP PR R
aa A~ W N P O © 00 N O 0o A W N +— O

Evidentiary Hearing Vol XlI

October 15, 2025 Page 27
Working Capital, |ssue 3?
Heari ng none, we wll nove onto
Prepaynents, |Issue 4. Are there any Conmm ssioner
gquestions on Prepaynents, |ssue 4?
(kay. Hearing none, we'll nove onto our
next issue. That is Materials, Supplies and
I nventory. Charlotte Enery, please go ahead and cone
on up. Materials, Supplies and Inventory. And
Li ndsey Smith will be our second witness after
Ms. Enery. | amaware that we do have Conm ssioner or
Bench questi ons.
M5. CARTER W are grabbing Ms. Enery
fromthe hallway.
JUDGE HATCHER: I f she needs a m nute, we
can go out of order and take Ms. Smth next.
M5. CARTER | imagine she's right in the
hal | way.
JUDGE HATCHER: And they're both out.
Not a problem Don't -- don't -- don't rush them
That's fine. W can nove on. W wll circle back.
W will circle back to Materials, Supplies and
| nventori es.
Cust omer Deposits/ Custonmer Advances.
This is Issues 7, 8 and 75. Are there any
Comm ssi oner questions on Custoner Deposits/Custoner
888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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Advances, |Issues 7, 8 or 75? Hearing none, we w ||
nove on.

Can one of the counsel that knows the
| adi es give ne a head nod if they're in the roonf
They are? Excellent. Thank you.

Let's go ahead and call Ms. Enery to the
stand. Sorry to surprise you.

THE WTNESS: No surprise.

JUDGE HATCHER: This is going to be on
the issue of Materials, Supplies and Inventory. And
Lindsey Smith of Staff will be going next.

Correct nme if I'"'mwong. Wre you sworn
I n yesterday?

THE WTNESS: | was, yes.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. That still
applies. You may have a seat.

THE WTNESS: Ckay. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Let us junmp in. Are
there any questions for Charlotte Enery on |Issue 5,
Materials, Supplies and Inventory? Any Comm ssioner
questions?

CHARLOTTE EMERY,
havi ng been previously sworn, testified as foll ows:
QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER
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Q kay. The Bench does have a couple
gquestions. Do -- I'mreally sorry to junp right in
t here.

A That's okay.

Q Do clearing account entries cone from
wor k orders?

A | can validate for you, but it is ny
under st andi ng that they do, yes.

Q Second question. Can you give an exanple
of why materials and supplies are posted to clearing
account s?

A Uh-huh. [It's nmy understandi ng that there
are instances where there are bal ances that need to be
al | ocat ed anongst many projects. And so then they
cone into the -- this holding clearing account and
then they wait til the end of the nonth.

And then the accounting teamw Il go in
and de- -- determ ne which projects were open or
cl osed, you know, that -- that those costs relate to
and then they performan allocation out to -- out to
t hose bal ances.

Q Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: That was all the
guestions fromthe Bench so I'l|l ask again, any

Comm ssi oner questions for Ms. Enery?
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Hearing none, that wll take us through
recross-examnation. As this is an Enpire w tness,
that would go to MECG first.

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: And Staff.

M5. JOHNSON: No, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Consuners Counci |l .

MR. COFFMAN: No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: And O fice of Public

Counsel .
MR. WLLIAMS: No questions, thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER: And redirect from Enpire.
MR. FLAHERTY: No redirect, Judge. Thank
you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.
Thank you, Ms. Enery. | appreciate you
bei ng here today. You're excused fromour stand for

this issue.

Yes?

MR. WLLIAMS: | think she's on the next
| sSsue.

JUDGE HATCHER: | think so, but | want to
keep it together. |If you can go ahead and -- and take
a seat. We'll call you back up in a mnute.

THE WTNESS: Is it okay if | |eave ny
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stuff?

JUDGE HATCHER: Yes, that's fine.

Li ndsey Smith of Staff. |If you'd raise
your right hand.

(Wtness sworn.)

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. Please have a
seat and then state and spell your nanme for our court
reporter, please.

THE W TNESS: Lindsey Smth,
L-i-n-d-s-e-y Smi-t-h.

JUDGE HATCHER: We'Il go directly to
Commi ssi oner questions. Are there any Conmm ssi oner
guestions for Ms. Smth in the area of Materials,
Supplies and I nventory?

LI NDSEY SM TH,
being first duly sworn, testified as foll ows:
QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER:

Q Ckay. The Bench does have one question
for you. If materials are taken out of inventory and
used in a capital project, would you expect Enpire to
replenish its inventory by ordering nore of those
materi al s? And pl ease explain that answer.

A Yes, | would expect themto replenish
those and use it for other materials. Because, |
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nean, if they're using the materials in a capital
expenditure, then they're going to be booked in

anot her account then the accounts that are included in
materials and supplies. So if they're using them

then they need to be repl enished in another account --

Q Ckay.
A -- I n anot her way.
Q Thank you very nuch.

JUDGE HATCHER: That was fairly short on
ny part. | only had the one question. So |I'll ask
again, are there any Conm ssioner questions?

Heari ng none, we wll go to our
recross-examnation. This is a Staff w tness, so
we -- we start again wth MECG

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: Consuners Counci |l .

MR. COFFMAN: No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Enpire.

MR. FLAHERTY: No questions.

JUDGE HATCHER.  OPC.

MR. WLLIAMS: No questions, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: And redirect.

M5. JOHNSON: Nothing from Staff.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you all.

Ms. Smith, | think you m ght be on one
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nore, but you are excused fromthe stand for this
I ssue. | appreciate that.

Ckay. Qur next issue we have is
Regul atory Assets and Liabilities, Issues 9 through
14. There are two topics called Regulatory Assets, so
pl ease make sure these are only Issues 9 through 14.

Do any Conm ssioners have any questions
on Requl atory Assets or Liabilities, Issues 9 through
147

kay. The Bench does have questions.
Can | get Nat- -- no, can | get Angela Schaben of
Publ i ¢ Counsel ?

MR. FLAHERTY: Your Honor, | think it's
Ms. Enery back up again to answer those |ssues 9
t hrough 14.

JUDGE HATCHER: | agree Ms. Enery would
be up, but | don't have any questions for her and I
just called for questions fromthe Comm ssioners. |
didn't hear any, but there m ght be sone
m sunder st andi ng about that.

My intent would be to call the one
W tness that -- that | have questions for. That is
Angel a Schaben. So I will ask again, we have
Charlotte Enery on this issue, as well as Nat han

Bailey. Well, I --

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N O O A~ W N PP

N DN D DD DNDDNN PP PR R
aa A~ W N P O © 00 N O 0o A W N +— O

Evidentiary Hearing Vol XlI
October 15, 2025 Page 34

MR. WLLIAMS: Judge, are you -- do you
have questions on the Allocations issue, which is the
foll om ng one since you said Angel a Schaben?

JUDGE HATCHER. The -- the question | was
given is listed under Regul atory Assets/Liabilities,
| ssues 9 through 14.

MR WLLIAMS: | think | could get Angel a
down here, but we did not sponsor testinony on that
| ssue or those -- those issues.

JUDGE HATCHER: It's a -- it's m staken.
| -- I"'mgoing to wait for Allocations, and that is
| ssues 73 to 74 and 84. Yeah. ay. | amsorry. M
m stake. Yep, that's -- that's the next one.

Ckay. Regul atory Assets/Liabilities,
| ssues 9 through 14. Are there any Conm ssi oner
questions?

Ckay. Hearing none, we wll nove on to
t he next issue, which is Allocations, Alocators and
CAM On that issue we have witnesses Charlotte Enery,
Peter Eichler, Angela N eneier and Angel a Schaben.

The only questions | have are for
Ms. Schaben, so if she would nake her way downstairs.
And while she's comng downstairs, I'lIl ask if there's
any Conm ssioner questions on this issue, Allocations,

All ocators and CAM This is |Issues 73, 74 and 84. I n
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general, the issues discuss the January 2025 CAM
al l ocators, the appropriate |evel of A&G expense, and
the appropriate jurisdictional allocations.
Are there any Conm ssioner questions on
Al | ocations, Allocators or CAM i ssues?
kay. And the Bench does have questions
of Ms. Schaben, if Ms. Schaben woul d pl ease cone onto
the stand. And if this takes nore than a mnute, we
will skip to the next issue and then circle back to
t his.
MR. WLLIAMS: | suggest you do that.
JUDGE HATCHER:  kay.
MR WLLIAVMS: 1've -- |'ve texted
requesting her presence, but | don't see her yet.
JUDGE HATCHER: Not a problem |
understand. And -- and again, this is no parties'
fault. This is one of those instances of litigation
where tinelines don't nmesh very well.
Let's nove onto our second instance of
Regul atory Assets and Liabilities. This covers a
| arger issue set, Issues 17 to 24, |Issue 29, Issue 34
and |Issue 35. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities,
| ssues 17 to 24, Issue 29, Issue 34 and |ssue 35.
Commi ssioners, this is on page 16 of your
meno. This includes solar initiatives, R verton 12
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tracker, Riverton 12 O%M aut hori zations, PISA
regul atory assets, Riverton environnental costs, as
wel | as others. Any questions on those?

Heari ng none, we will nove to Custoner
Prograns. Comm ssioners, this is page 21 of your
meno. For the parties, this is Issues 15 and 118.
| ssue 15 is the Appropriate Rate-Base Anpunt and
Amor- -- Anortization Expense for Lowinconme Pil ot
Program And Issue 118 is the Waiver of the Custoner
Charge for Incone-Eligible Residential Custoners.

Are there any Conm ssioner questions on
either of those two issues, the topic of Custoner
Prograns?

Heari ng none, those issues are submtted
on their pre-filed testinony.

MR. COFFMAN. So to clarify, Your Honor,
the -- so everyone under -- all Custonmer Program
| ssues are conpleted and those w tnesses are excused?

JUDGE HATCHER  Yes.

MR. COFFMAN: Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: There will be briefing on
t hose i ssues, but yes.

MR. COFFMAN:. Excellent. Thank you.

MR WLLIAMS: Do you want to take a
short break while | try to track down Ms. Schaben?
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JUDGE HATCHER: I'mtrying to consider if
we want to nove this issue to tonorrow and take it up
then, or if we would like to break for 10 or
15 m nutes and cone back to finish what m ght be only
a single question for Ms. Schaben.

kay. Let's take -- let's take a
10-m nute break. Let's go off the record. Let's cone
back -- let's call it 15-mnute break. Let's cone
back at 10:00 on the hour. Ten o'clock. W are at
recess and off the record.

(A recess was taken.)

JUDGE HATCHER: (Okay. Let's go back on
the record. Before we begin with Ms. Schaben on the
I ssue of Allocations, | would like to discuss with
counsel what we wll be doing for the rest of today.

The schedule that's provided by the
parties sets up a litigated issue or two per day. And
the remai ning i ssues that are scheduled for this day
have been agreed by the parties to be submtted on the
pre-filed testinony but for any Comm ssioner
questi ons.

Because we are likely to end nmuch earlier
t han we expected today, the Comm ssion would like to
take this opportunity to nove sone of those issues

t hat have been agreed to have no cross-exanm nation to
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this afternoon.

| understand that this places the
W tnesses in an even nore awkward position than they
have been this week. And again, this is just a
litigation issue that is no party's particular fault.
It is just due to the timng that we have to deal wth
Wi th this hearing.

So just to give everyone a heads- up,
after we finish with Ms. Schaben's testinony on
Al | ocations, ny intent is to go to the schedule for
tomorrow. | will not be calling the issues that are
ready to be litigated by the parties. Those would be
the continuation of Custoner Experience and FAC.

What | wll be calling is the next issue,
Riverton 10. | wll begin by asking the Conm ssioners
I f they have any questions on Riverton 10. | wll
then go to M scel | aneous i ssues and then Pensions and
OPEB i ssues.

W will follow the sanme format we've had
thus far. W will start with Conm ssioner questions.
If there are none, we will consider the issue
submtted. |If there are, we'll go through our
Cross-exam nati on.

M. Vandergriff.

MR. VANDERGRI FF:  Your Honor, | have a
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di fferent question unrelated to what you've nentioned
bef ore.

Yesterday we had a | ot of questions about
t he Non-Unani nous d obal Stipulation and the inpacts
on custoners' bills. Qur expert, Sarah Lange, cane up
with the nunbers, everything is supported by evidence.
But | wanted to show -- | nean to provide this as a
denonstrative. | understand that | need to show this
to all the other counsel, if I -- if | have tinme to do
that? My |7

JUDGE HATCHER: |'m not sure where you're
headed with this, but it brings up a point of
di scussion. | have several questions that | would
li ke to ask on the stipulation. And | don't have a
good place to put those because they don't -- they
don't correspond easily to an issue. | thought you
were going to ask if we could have a speci al
presentation on the stipulation.

MR. VANDERGRI FF: May we have a
presentation on the stipulation?

JUDGE HATCHER  Yes.

Let's put that one on hold. Let's finish
nmy schedul ing concern, because | want to finish up
wWth the question and | want to throw it out to the

counsel .

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N O O A~ W N PP

N DN D DD DNDDNN PP PR R
aa A~ W N P O © 00 N O 0o A W N +— O

Evidentiary Hearing Vol XlI
October 15, 2025 Page 40

Do any of the counsel ors have any
concerns, input, suggestions on ny proposal for the
rest of today? M proposal extends to the issues
i ncl uded for Friday and Monday as well. Not the
litigated issues.

There's an Ozark Beach sonet hing or
other, that one is to be litigated. But the other
| ssues that have the agreenent for the
non-cross-examnation if we go through it this fast,
we mght finish all of themtoday.

So, Counsel, do we have any questions for
my very sharp left turn in our schedul e?

MR. WLLIAMS: Judge, | don't have any
problemwith it. And I'd also add in we'd wai ve cross
on John Reed.

JUDGE HATCHER: Any ot her input,

t houghts? Okay. W wll proceed with that. Everyone
has been given fair warning.

Let's turn back to M. Vandergriff's
suggestion that | may have given him | have
guestions about the stipulation. Wuld it be
acceptable to all the counsel if we just tack that on
as a Friday issue? W'IlI|l tack that on at the end on
Friday?

| -- 1 -- 1 hesitate to nove our Friday
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I ssues -- the live, litigated issues up to Thursday,
because |'m not sure about the witness availability
for that, so tacking this on to the end of the
schedule. Do |I have any objections to anmendi ng our
hearing schedule to add on a segnent for wtness
testinony on the stipulation, question mark?

MR WLLIAMS: |'mnot going to object.

I think the Conm ssion can conduct its hearing as it
chooses, so.

JUDGE HATCHER: Well, input. Any input
fromcounsel? 1s this a wong direction are we headed
or is everybody okay with this?

MR WLLIAVS: Go for it.

MR. COFFMAN:  No obj ection.

M5. CARTER  Judge, we have no objection
to that. Also, | think for our witnesses for the
litigated i ssues on Friday, they will be here on
Thursday, if we wanted to go ahead and do those on
Thur sday.

JUDGE HATCHER: We will keep that open as
opti on.

kay. Consider the stipulation testinony
added onto the end of the schedule. | wll really try
and issue out an order in witing so that everyone is

made aware. O her than that, let's return to our
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| ssue.

Does Enpire have any ot her questions or
I nput ?

Ckay. Let's nove on to Allocations,

Al | ocators and CAM Ms. Schaben, if you would cone up
to our witness stand, please.

Comm ssioners, this is page 14 of your
table. This is Issues 73, 74 and 84.

Angel a Schaben, pl ease raise your right
hand.

(Wtness sworn.)

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. Pl ease go
ahead and have a seat. Wuld you state and spell your
name for our court reporter.

THE WTNESS: Angela, A-n-g-e-l-a,
Schaben, S-c-h-a-b, as in boy, e-n.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

And again to rem nd everyone, this is an
| ssue where the parties have agreed not to
cross-exam nation, so we begin wth Comm ssioners
questions. Are there any Conm ssioner questions for
Ms. Schaben?

Heari ng none, the Bench does have a
question -- coupl e questions.

ANGELA SCHABEN,
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being first duly sworn, testified as foll ows:
QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER:

Q On page two of your direct testinony, in
footnote one, it indicates that your actual anounts
used for your O&M and A&G conparisons conme from FERC
Form 1 annual reports. Wy did you not use the
M ssouri-Specific Annual Report information submtted
to the Comm ssion?

A | used the FERC Form 1s as a general
conpari son between all of the M ssouri investor-owned
utilities in order -- because | knew |li ke exactly what
was in it, if that nmakes sense. Like a benchmark ki nd
of .

Q kay. Thank you. Do you know if the
FERC Form 1 used to gather the Liberty information
included its utilities in Kansas, Arkansas and
Okl ahoma?

A It did. And then that's in ny -- in the
position statenent, | broke out the anpbunt based on
jurisdictional factors.

Q Did you break it out in your testinony?
Because the position statenent isn't evidence.

A | apologize. | did not. Sorry.

Q kay. That's all right.

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS

www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N O O A~ W N PP

N DN D DD DNDDNN PP PR R
aa A~ W N P O © 00 N O 0o A W N +— O

Evidentiary Hearing Vol XlI

October 15, 2025 Page 44

A But | did -- in order to -- because the
anmounts were constantly changing, like, in the case.
So by the end of the case, you couldn't really go off
of the 2024 nunbers anynore because the test year
ended in March 2025.

But -- so | used the jurisdictional
factors that Staff canme up with at the very end. |
didn't -- but | did not get to put that in ny
surrebuttal testinony. Apol ogies.

Q Okay. Do your anobunts for O&M and A&G
costs used in your analysis include enpl oyee wages and
rel ated payroll costs?

A Yes. It would include anything that's
consi dered adm nistrative in general.

Q And | think this is ny last question. Do
your amounts for A&G i ncl ude FERC USOA Accounts 920 to
9317

A | can't say for sure off the top of ny
head, sorry, without having it in front of ne. But --
920 t hrough 9317

Q Ri ght .

A Those shoul d be considered adm nistrative
in general, | would think. |If they're admnistrative
I n general accounts, then yes, that would be incl uded
in the adm nistrative in general line on the FERC
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Form 1.
Q kay. Thank you. That was all the
guestions | had.
JUDGE HATCHER: 1'Ill ask again for any

Commi ssi oner questions before we nove on to
recross-exam nation. Are there any Conm ssioner
questions for Ms. Schaben?

Al'l right. Hearing none, we wll go to
our recross. Consuners Council.

MR. COFFMAN: No questi ons.

JUDCGE HATCHER:  MECG

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER  Staff.

MR. PRINGLE: No, thank you, Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Enpire.

MR, FLAHERTY: Yes. Just a few
questions, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER  Go ahead.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR FLAHERTY:

Q Good norning, M. Schaben.
A Good nor ni ng.
Q My nane is JimFlaherty, and | represent
Enpire. | just have a coupl e questions based upon the
Judge's questions relating to -- | think he pointed
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you to page two of your direct testinony and a
question about the sources that were used to fill out
your Table 1. Are you with ne?

A Yes.

Q So did you normalize any of the nunbers
in the FERC Form Nunber 1 that are included in
Tabl e 17

A Table 1 is based on actuals.

Q Did you nornalize any of the nunbers in
Table 17

A Wl |, no, because they're actuals.

Q Ckay. And did you normalize any of
the -- well, let ne ask you this: Wen | say
"normal i ze," what -- what do you -- what do you think
t hat term neans?

A Normalizing is |ike when you have to
average over a period of years to get a normalized
anmount .

Q So in -- in accounting terns, would you
agree that the term "nornmalized" refers to adjusting a
conpany's financial statenents to renpve or account
for nonrecurring or unusual or discretionary itens?

A That's a fair assessnent.

Q And you didn't do that in -- in Table 17?
For exanple, if there were -- you didn't | ook at year
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2018 and determne if there were any nonrecurring,
unusual or discretionary itens that needed to be taken
out ?

A No, because it's based on actuals.

Q Okay. And is it fair to say that in a
your tables, that you didn't normalize any of the

nunbers that are included in those tabl es?

A That's true.
Q Thank you.
MR. FLAHERTY: That's all | have. Thank
you, Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. Fl aherty.
And redirect.
MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR W LLI AMS:
Q |'"'mgoing to start with Table 1, your O&M
and A&G that you used actuals. Do you have any reason
to think that there would be any outliers in the

nunbers that you saw?

A In Table 1, no.

Q Yes.

A They're fairly consistent.

Q And then the Bench asked you about a

br eak- out of sone of the information. You said that
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you -- it shows up in position statenents, but not in

your testinony. Do you recall that?

A Yes.

Q Do you know what that break-out is?

A Yes. So we had -- |ike our position in
the end, the -- we're reducing Staff's nunber by

17 mllion. Staff had $41, 643,800 for Enpire's A&G
expense in their EMS runs -- the final -- final EMS
run. So | reduced that by $17,159,938. And that's

wWith the jurisdictional factor of approxinmately

88 percent.
Q Thank you. No further questions.
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. WIIians.
Thank you, Ms. Schaben. | appreciate you being here

today. You are excused fromour w tness stand.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER. Okay. As we di scussed,
we are going to nove into the schedul ed i ssues for day
three. Just to nake everyone aware and repeat nyself
alittle bit, there are five issue topics schedul ed
for day three.

The continuation of Custoner Experience
and FAC are the first two. Those are issues to be
litigated by the parties. W wll not be calling
t hose today.
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W will nove on to the remaining three
| ssues. These are three -- all three have the
agreenent of the parties to not cross-exam ne, which
nmeans each of these three begin with custoner
[as said] questions: Riverton 10, M scell aneous
| ssues -- M scell aneous i ssues and Pensi on OPEB
issues. So | wll go ahead and begin calling that.

Comm ssioners, this is going to be on
your day three nenb. Riverton starts at page 11. Are
t here any Comm ssi oner questions on the issue of
Ri verton 10? This is |Issue Nunber 2-H and 88.

And the questions can be summarized as
whet her Enpire should recover the cost of repairs to
Ri verton 10 and were the Riverton 10 repair costs
prudently incurred. Are there any Comm ssioner
questions on Riverton 107

Heari ng none and the Bench has no
guestions, we will consider that issue submtted.

Next is going to be a slightly |arger
topic area. This is titled M scell aneous issues.

Conmmi ssioners, this begins on page 14 of
your table. This is Issues 6, 132, 133, 134 and 135.
Since this is a relatively short topic area, 1'l
sumari ze those issues.

| ssue 6 is the anount of fuel inventory,
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132 is systemenergy |oss factor, 133 is
jur- -- jurisdictional allocation factors for denmand
and energy, 134 is determ ning gas transportation
costs, 135 is gas -- gas transportation costs
cal cul ated using the new rates established.

Are there any Conm ssioner questions on
any of those issues under the topic of M scell aneous
| ssues?

Heari ng none, we will consider that topic
area submtted on its pre-filed testinonies.

Next, we will go to Pension and OPEB
| ssues. Comm ssioners, this is page 16 of your table.
Pensi on and OPEB issues address |ssues 16, 62, 63, 64,
and 65.

Si xteen is the appropriate rate-base
bal ance for the prepaid pension asset, pension tracker
and OPEB tracker -- OPEB tracker, 62 is the expense
anount to be included in the revenue requirenent for
the FAS 87 costs, 63 is the expense anount for FAS
88 costs, 64 is the expense anount for FAS 106, and 65
Is the expense anmount reflected for SERP.

Are there any Conmm ssioner questions in
the topic area covering Pensions and OPEB i ssues?

Heari ng none, we will consider that issue

submtted on its pre-filed testinony.
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That takes care of all of the issues for
tonorrow except for the two issues to be |itigated,

t he continuati on of Consuner -- Customer Experience
and FAC.

W will nove on in the sane vein to the
remai nder of the issues. These are the issues
schedul ed for Friday and Monday. W have two |ive
I ssues to be litigated by the parties for Friday.
This is the Ozark Beach crane extension and Additi onal
I ssues. We will not bring those issues up today. W
m ght nove those to Thursday dependi ng on how
Thur sday' s schedul e works out.

MR WLLIAMS: Judge?

JUDCGE HATCHER:  Yes.

MR WLLIAMS: Wth regard to that, |
beli eve Geoff Marke is not avail abl e Thursday.

JUDGE HATCHER: kay. Good to know.
Thank you. And like | said, | wll bend over
backwards to make sure that all of our w tnesses get
to be heard. Go ahead.

MR. WLLIAMS: | understand. | just
wanted to point that out because you were talking
about noving it to a date that | think he's
unavai | abl e.

JUDGE HATCHER: Under st andable. W' ve
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had a change in scheduling com ng just a few days
before this hearing and then, in addition, ny changes
to the scheduling happening now, | amvery aware that
that is -- is throwng sone witness schedule into --

I nto confusion so | want to be very aware of that.

Is Dr. Marke avail abl e today?

MR WLLIAMS: Yes.

JUDCGE HATCHER: Let's circle back to that
I ssue. Which issue was he testifying on? Beach
crane -- Ozark Beach crane extension?

MR, WLLIAMS: Both that and the 169.

JUDGE HATCHER:  kay.

MR WLLIAMS: | think both are
relatively sh- -- | expect they'll be short.

JUDGE HATCHER: VWhile | call the four
non-cross issues, if counsel for the other parties
would inquire if their witnesses for Ozark Beach crane
extension and Additional issues, which is Issue 169,

I f those wtnesses are avail abl e today?

MR. PRINGLE: | can actually let you know
ri ght now, Judge, when it cones to Additional [ssues,
Coty King, he is not avail abl e today.

JUDGE HATCHER: kay. So we m ght be
splitting that one up and do that over two days.

That's not ny preference, but if that's howit works
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out.

Conpany.

M5. CARTER  Judge, we would al so need to
be tonorrow on those issues.

JUDCGE HATCHER: Okay. Let ne think about
that. Let's go ahead and go to our non-cross-exani ne
| ssues schedul ed for Friday and Monday.

Before | call them 1'Il nane those four
topic areas. This is going to be Plant and
Accunul at ed Depreciation -- Depreciation, Tax Matters
and Cybersecurity. So I'mgoing to call those four
| ssues now. Again, each of those have wai ved
cross-exam by the parties.

We start with Conm ssioner questions.

Pl ant and Accunul ated Depreciation, this is |Issues 2,
A through Gand | through J. The mssing H we covered
Wth the previous day's issue on -- | think it was

Ri verton 10. So Plant and Accunul at ed Depreci ati on.
This is Issues 2, A through G and | through J.

Commi ssioners, this is page three of your
days' four and five neno. Are there any Conm ssi oner
guestions on Plant and Accunul ated Depreci ation,
| ssues 2, A through G and | through J? Ckay.

The Bench does have questions, but they

are only for M. Young. |Is Staff Wtness Mtthew
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Young available? |If he could cone on up to the stand.
MR. PRINGLE: Yeah, he's sitting back

t here.
JUDGE HATCHER: Before you cone up,

M. Young, do you have a copy of the true-up

accounti ng schedul e?

THE WTNESS: | do not.
JUDCGE HATCHER: Does soneone down -- if
soneone could give -- excellent. Thank you.

And, M. Young, do you have your
surrebuttal /true-up direct testinony with you?

THE WTNESS: Yes, | do.

JUDGE HATCHER: Excellent. You were
sworn in yesterday, if | recall correctly?

THE WTNESS: Yes, | was.

JUDGE HATCHER: That still applies to
today. Please go ahead and take your seat. | trust
that the accounting schedule is making its way to the
W t ness stand nonentarily. 1'll go ahead and start ny
guesti on.

MATTHEW YOUNG

havi ng been previously sworn, testified as foll ows:

QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER:
Q The true-up accounting schedule entries
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to adjust reserve for environnental cost do not total
the $7, 348,995 anount Liberty recommends for |atan/PCB
offsets. Staff adjustnents total over eight mllion
dol lars. Your surrebuttal/true-up direct testinony on
page two appears to be in agreenent with Liberty.
Here's ny question --

A kay.

Q -- which is the correct amount? Staff's
or Liberty's that should be the offset to the
accunul ated reserve bal ance, and why?

A It's ny understanding -- and after |
| eave here, I'I|l go verify.

It's nmy understanding that Enpire and
Staff are aligned for this adjustnent. The only
difference that m ght show up woul d be the anount of
the -- the adjustnent that was allocated to M ssouri.
Staff and Enpire m ght have a different percentage in
our revenue requirenent nodels.

So -- so the total conpany m ght sync,
right, but the anmpbunt that shows up in the accounting
schedul es, you know, Staff m ght have used 88 percent
where Enpire used 87 percent of the total conpany
adjustnment. | suspect if there's a difference, that's
what's causing it.

Q kay. Thank you.
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But thank you for bringing those down. |
appreciate the effort.

That was ny only question.

JUDGE HATCHER: 1'Ill ask again for any
Comm ssi oner questions since that was so short. Are
t here any Comm ssioner questions for Staff Wtness
Young on the issue of Plant and Accunul at ed
Depr eci ati on?

Hearing none, we wll go to
recross-examnation. This is a Staff witness. That
wll start us with MECG

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: Consuners Counci | .

MR. COFFMAN:  No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Enpire.

M5. CARTER  No questions.

JUDGE HATCHER: Public Counsel .

MR. WLLIAMS: No questions, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: And redirect.

MR. VANDERGRI FF:  No, thank you, Your
Honor .

JUDGE HATCHER: M. Young, | appreciate
you being here today. You are excused from our
W t ness stand.

Next, we will nove to Depreciation. This
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s | ssue 80.

Commi ssioners, this is page nine of your
table. The issue reads: Wat are the appropriate --
appropriate depreciation rates to be ordered by the
Comm ssi on?

MR. PRINGLE: And, Judge, this is Travis
Pringle for Staff. Just one clarification matter for
you. Staff Wtness Ml achi Bowran, the depreciation
rate schedule to his direct testinony, the stip
enbraced his recomended rates. The stip has the
correct schedul e, but when we were in talks, we
realized that his direct schedule had an error init.

So just want to see how you woul d prefer
us to handle it. Again, the -- the correct schedul e
Is attached to the stip and on EFIS. Just we
di scovered during talks that his schedule attached to
his direct had errors init.

JUDGE HATCHER: Let's take an errata
sheet. |'ve directed an errata sheet for every other
W tness correction, and in this case a single |ast
name. So let's go with an errata sheet to correct
that. Yeah, | think that would do it.

MR. PRINGLE: Al right. Thank you,
Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER: Okay. Depreciation,
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| ssue 80. Are there any Bench questions on
Depreci ation, |ssue 807

Ckay. Hearing none, we wll consider
that issue submitted on a pre-filed testinony.

The next issue is a little weightier and
| do have questions specifically for Mchel MCuen of
Enpi re and Matthew Young. Thank you, M. Young, for
sticking around in the room

This is Tax Matters, |Issues 31 through
33, 36, 37, 77, 82 and 87. Conm ssioners, this begins
on page 10 of your table. And this is rather | engthy,
so please review those issues. | will not summarize
t hem

This is Issues 31 through 33, 36, 37, 77,
82 and 87. Are there any Conmm ssioner questions on
any of those issues?

M. MCuen, if you can go ahead and nake
your way up to the w tness stand.

MR. FLAHERTY: Yeah. M. MCuen's not
here. He was schedul ed for next Monday, so.

JUDGE HATCHER: Ri ght.

MR. FLAHERTY: W can try to get him
virtually if that would work, but it would probably
take us sonme tine to see if he -- what his

availability is.
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t oday?

Honor .

sonebody text,

Honor .

needed to...

Matters since,

Cybersecurity.

Conmm ssi oner s,

JUDGE HATCHER® Great. But that wll| be

MR. FLAHERTY: We will try, yes, Your

JUDGE HATCHER: Let's go ahead and have

e-mail him contact. Let's find his

earliest availability to appear by WebEx. And once |
get a tinme back fromyou all, we'll try and rearrange
the schedule to fit that.

MR. FLAHERTY: Ckay. Thank you, Your

JUDGE HATCHER Let's nove to M. Young
who -- who just wal ked out, right? GCkay. No, no, no.

M5. LANGE: He'll be right back. He

JUDGE HATCHER: Let's hold off on Tax

again, I'"'monly going to have nmaybe a

si ngl e questi on.

Let's nove to our | ast issue,

This is the | ast no cross-exam nati ons

| ssue that we have. We will cone back to -- to
M. Young and Tax Matters.
This is Cybersecurity, Issue 72.

this is page 14 of your neno. This is

only one singular issue. And the issue is Nunber 72:

888-893-3767
www.lexitaslegal.com

Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N O O A~ W N PP

N DN D DD DNDDNN PP PR R
aa A~ W N P O © 00 N O 0o A W N +— O

Evidentiary Hearing Vol XlI
October 15, 2025 Page 60

What | evel of cybersecurity expense should the
Commi ssion recognize in Enpire's revenue requirenent?

Comm ssioners, are there any Conm ssi oner
questions on cybersecurity?

Hearing none, we will consider that issue
submtted on its pre-filed testinony.

Let's go ahead and call back up
M. Young. We will return to our Tax Matters topic
area. Again, this covers nunerous issues, |ssues 31
t hrough 33, 36, 37, 77, 82, and 87. Are there any
Comm ssi oners' questions on any of those issues?

Heari ng none, |I'Il circle back and ask
agai n.

MATTHEW YOUNG
havi ng been previously sworn, testified as foll ows:
QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER:
Q | do have one question fromthe Bench.

OPC Wtness Riley cites to an IRS private -- |I'm
sorry, yes, that's right.

OPC Wtness Riley cites to an IRS private
under -- ruling, which states that the use of the,

guote, "with or without," end quote, nethodol ogy
requires net operating loss carry forwards be

attributed to accel erated depreciation first. Do you
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agree?

A It's been a few days since |'ve read
M. Riley's testinony. | don't recall exactly what
hi s argunent was there.

The IRS's with or without nethod does
relate to the NOL utilities have in the rate base for
sure. Only to the extent that if the Conm ssion --
well, | think the -- the PLRs, the private letter
rulings, they generally constrict the Comm ssion from
excluding the NOL in a utility's rate base if it is
caused by accelerated depreciation. So -- so that --
that -- that causes a nornmalation violation --
normal i zation violation wwth the IRS and that has
seri ous consequences.

In this case, Enpire's net operating |oss
on its books, however, did not relate to accel erated
depreciation. And so the with or without nethod I'm
not sure is applicable to -- to the rate base we're
considering in this case.

Q Thank you, M. Young. | appreciate that.

JUDGE HATCHER: As prom sed, |'ll ask the
Comm ssi oners once again before | go to
cross-exam nation. Are there any Conm ssi oner
guestions for M. Young?

kay. Hearing none, we'll go through our
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recross-exam nation schedule. First, we will go to
M. OQpitz.

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: And M. Cof f man.

MR. COFFMAN:  No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: And Enpire.

MR. FLAHERTY: No questions.

JUDGE HATCHER: Public Counsel .

MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR W LLI AMS:

Q M. Young, what's the effect of a private
|l etter ruling with the I RS?

A A private letter rulingis a--1is a --
it's specific to the taxpayer that is requesting a
ruling fromthe IRS. It's a -- it's a taxpayer that
has a tax question and they ask the RS to give them
gui dance on how to appropriately handle the -- the
I ssue in their tax returns.

And so those that are not specific to --
well, | guess they're not a broad rule to every
taxpayer. But | think the general inpression the
Commi ssion has found in the past is that the -- the
Comm ssion can rely on a series of -- of PLRs to -- to
get a concept of howthe IRS feels a tax matter shoul d
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be appr oached.

Q Is a private letter ruling binding on the
IRS as to the taxpayer who's been issued the private
|l etter ruling, do you know?

A | don't know.

Q Are private letter rulings |ooked to for

gui dance general | y?

A Yes. That is the purpose of --
Q Thank you.
A -- a PLR

JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you, M. WIIians.
Redi rect .

MR. VANDERGRI FF: No redirect, Your
Honor .

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. That woul d
conclude the testinony on Tax Matters. M. Young,
t hank you. You're excused fromthe w tness stand.

MR. FLAHERTY: Your Honor, M. MCuen is
avai | abl e on WebEx now.

JUDGE HATCHER: Rem nd ne whi ch issue.

MR, FLAHERTY: On the Tax Matters that we
j ust had.

JUDGE HATCHER: Excellent. Thank you. |
appreci ate that.

Brian, if you could help ne and -- and
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pin M. MCuen up to the board. M. MCuen, can you
hear mne? M. MCuen, can you go ahead and speak up?

THE WTNESS: | -- can you hear ne?

JUDGE HATCHER: Yes, thank you.

THE W TNESS: Perfect.

JUDGE HATCHER: M. MCuen, we're having
a slightly altered hearing process today. W are
going to junp right in with Conm ssioner questions.

Normal |y your testinony would be to cone
to the witness stand, either physically or -- or here
on -- on the WbEx, and then we woul d proceed with a
recitation of your pre-filed testinony.

The parties have stipulated that that's
al ready been admtted. So we are going to swear you
in and then | have a couple questions for you. So if
you woul d rai se your right hand, please.

(Wtness sworn.)

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. If you woul d
pl ease state and spell your nane for the record.

THE WTNESS: M chael MCuen,
Mi-c-h-a-e-1, |last nane McCuen, M c-Cu-e-n.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. MCuen.

Are there any Conm ssioner questions for
M. MCuen? GCkay. |'ll go ahead and start and | w |

re-call the Conm ssioner questions at the end.
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QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER:

Q This is the sane question -- | don't know
i f you were online, but this is the sanme question that
| just asked M. Young of the Staff w tness.

OPC Wtness Riley cites an IRS private
letter ruling that refers to the use of the with or
the wi thout nethodol ogy. Does Liberty use the with or
wi t hout net hodol ogy?

A So thank you for the question. | agree
that a pr- -- so the answer is no. However, the
private letter rulings that you're referring to from
M. Rley, | agree that the IRS has ruled that the
only thing protected that's required to be in rate
base regarding NOLs is that that's associated with
met hod/life, and the I RS suggests that you use a with
or without conputation. So | agree with that.

Li berty's argunent was not just that --
using the with or without; however, that in a fairness
principle and al so under the securitization statute,
that the NCOL that we have is directly related to Storm
Ui costs. And we believe that the securitization
statute kind of required us to nove all deferred
taxes -- both the deferred tax liability and the

associ ated deferred tax asset into the general rate
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case.
Q kay. Thank you. | appreciate that.

JUDGE HATCHER: (Ckay. Are there any
Comm ssi oner questions for MCuen?

Al'l right. Thank you. That wll go to
cross-exam So, M. MCuen, you're going to be on the
stand for just a few nore m nutes.

THE W TNESS:  Sur e.

JUDGE HATCHER: First, we'll go to MECG

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: Then Staff.

MR. VANDERGRI FF: No, thank you, Your

Honor .
JUDGE HATCHER: Consuners Counci | .
MR. COFFMAN: No questi ons.
JUDGE HATCHER: Public Counsel .
MR. WLLIAMS: No questions. Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER: And then redirect by the
Conpany.

MR. FLAHERTY: No redirect, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

M. MCuen, | appreciate you being here.
| am happy that this was a short experience for you.
You can go back to the rest of your workday.

THE WTNESS: All right. Thank you very
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much.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

Ckay. Let us review where we have been
and where we are going. W have finished day one of
our hearing, which addressed Custoner Experience.

Day two addressed -- this is day two,
whi ch addressed Capital Structure/ ROE and Cost of Debt
as the litigated i ssues on those two days. W also
had a nunber of issues that would be submtted on
their pre-filed testinony unless there were Bench
questi ons.

And to that end, we have finished all of
our issues that have been indicated as not needing
Cross-exam nation by the parties.

Sol amleft with two days of hearings
| eft. Tonorrow we have the continuation of Custoner
Experience. And let's pause there to wap that up.
We conti nued Custoner Experience because Conpany
W tness John Reed needed to appear on Thursday.

Publ i ¢ Counsel has indicated that since
the amount that M. Reed was paid has been entered
into the record, that they were waiVving
Cross-exam nati on.

Does that indicate that that issue is now

finished with its cross-exam nation by the parties?
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Does any other party wish to exam ne John Reed?

kay. I'mgoing to -- | will try and
check to see if | have any Bench questions for
M. Reed by the end of the day, but let's continue on
wi th our schedul e.

So tonorrow we woul d presumably be doing
Cust oner Experience, the continuation with M. Reed;
and then FAC. Friday we then have the --

M5. CARTER  And, Judge?

JUDGE HATCHER:  Yes.

M5. CARTER |I'msorry. | would just
note that M. Reed is also on FAC

JUDGE HATCHER: Ckay.

M5. CARTER So if you're checki ng about
whet her he's here or not --

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

M5. CARTER -- if we could conbine those
two together.

JUDGE HATCHER: That -- yes, that's where
| was driving at. Thank you. | appreciate that.

M5. CARTER  Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: So Friday we woul d
potentially have two issues to litigate; Ozark Beach
crane extension and Additional issues, which is

| ssue 169. And Issue 169 is the question of the
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Sel f-read Option.

We have -- the tinme is currently 10:48.
We have plenty of daylight left today. W are now
down to the remaining four issues to be litigated. |
recall a conversation that Dr. Marke was avail abl e and
that he was going to be testifying on -- is it Qzark
Beach or was that the Self-read?

MR. WLLIAMS: Bot h.

JUDGE HATCHER: Both. Ozark Beach ot her
W t nesses are Brian Berkstresser; Charlotte Enery, who
Is here; Staff is Brodrick Nieneier. |s Brian
Ber kstresser avail able today if we would nove this
f orward?

M5. CARTER He is in the process of
getting here so he could be here tonorrow norning. W
could, this afternoon, go ahead and do |ssue 169. |
don't have ny materials wwth ne yet for that one --
oh, no, Coty is not here.

MR. PRINGLE: Yes. Staff witness is not
here for 169.

M5. CARTER But Ms. Enery is here, so.

MR, WLLIAMS: Judge, |'mnot sure, but |
suspect that 169 probably -- if the Conm ssion has no
guestions, Public Counsel would be willing to waive

cross and just submt it.
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['I'l also point out, D ana nentioned on
the FAC i ssues John Reed's a witness. W'd waive
cross on himas well for that issue.

JUDGE HATCHER: Am | under st andi ng
correctly that on Additional issues, the parties would
agree to go directly to Comm ssioner questions?

M5. CARTER That is fine with Liberty.

MR. VANDERCGRI FF:  Subject to M. King's
availability, we're good.

MR. WLLIAMS: You're understandi ng
correctly from our perspective.

JUDGE HATCHER: R ght. And I'm asking
generally who are we --

MR. PRINGLE: Yes. Just the Staff
Wtness Coty King is not avail able today. So if there
were any Conmm ssion questions for him we would have
to take himtonorrow at the earliest.

MR WLLIAMS: But is Staff willing to
wai ve Geof f?

MR. VANDERGRI FF: W're willing to waive

MR WLLIAMS: And Charlotte?

JUDGE HATCHER: (kay. Let's -- let's
back into this. W'Il go wth Additional issues
first.
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That is, Conm ssioners, on your day four
and five nenu, page two -- neno, |'msorry, Additional
I ssues. This is Issue 169. The issue reads: Should
Enpire's tariffs be nodified to allow a sel f-read
option for custoners who opt out of AM neters?

Are there any Conm ssioner questions on
| ssue 169, the self-read option?

kay. The Bench would like to call Sarah
Lange to the stand on Issue 169, if she's still in the
room Thank you.

MR. PRINGLE: Just to note, Staff did not
have Ms. Lange |listed as a witness on this issue.

It's only M. Coty King for 169.

JUDGE HATCHER: You had her listed on the
original schedule. Sarah Lange, Justin Tevie, Randall
Jenni ngs.

MR. PRINGLE: None of them yeah, for --
are for this Self-read issue. It's sinply Coty King.

JUDGE HATCHER: And he's here tonorrow?
kay. We -- we nust have a --

MR. PRINGLE: Big determ nants, yes.
Those are the witnesses for Billing Determ nants and
Rat e Design, which was --

JUDGE HATCHER: No, okay. Let's kick 169

to tomorrow. We do want to ask Coty King sone
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guesti ons.

MR. PRI NGLE: Ckay.

MR. WLLIAMS: Judge, Ceoff Marke is al so
a wWtness and he's not available tonorrow, if the
Comm ssion's going to -- | said we'd waive if the
Commi ssi on had no questions.

JUDGE HATCHER: Dr. WMarke, cone on down.
You vol unteered one too nmany tines. You' ve been sworn
in.

THE WTNESS: | have.

JUDGE HATCHER: Awesone. That still
applies. Go ahead and have a seat.

Does sonebody have an intern who's
keeping track of where we are in the schedule? kay.

Yeah, just -- just to rem nd everyone
before | start wth this issue, we have four issues
remai ni ng; the continuation of Custoner Experience,
FAC, Ozark Beach crane extension, and the Self-read.

It sounds |like we're going to perhaps
split Self-read into two days. W mght have all the
guestions answered and it m ght be just today.

MR. PRINGLE: And Staff does have, |
guess, an unorthodox suggestion for how to naybe get
this i ssue wapped up today, is Ms. O aire Eubanks,
Coty King's manager, she could possibly take the stand
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and see if she can handl e any Conm ssion questions, if
that's an approach you want to try out.
JUDGE HATCHER:  Sol d.
MR. PRINGLE: Al right.
JUDGE HATCHER: Dr. Marke, you have
al ready been sworn in. That still applies.
Are there any Conm ssioner questions for
Dr. Marke on Issue 169 the Self-read option? Chair,
go ahead.
GEOFF MARKE,
havi ng been previously sworn, testified as foll ows:
QUESTI ONS
BY CHAI R HAHN:

Q Lucky you. Thank you.

So OPC s position is that there should be
a self-read option. This is not addressed in the
stipulation. Do you recall the provisions of Senate
Bill 4 that deal wwth AM neters?

A | do.

Q And | -- does it have -- does it specify
about self-read option or not in the statute, or do
you recal | ?

A | believe it does. | know that that was
a subject of discussion to try to mnimze cost.

Q | think I recall the sane. Do we have --
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| don't knowif we have -- do we have any tariffs in
pl ace yet for any utility conpanies that allow for AM
opt-out self-read at the new Senate Bill 4? And |

could also ask the Staff w tness.

A Ms. Eubanks m ght renenber. If we did, |
think it would have been for Evergy Wst woul d
probably be the only rate case that would have -- it
applied to.

Q kay. | think I mght ask Ms. Eubanks.

kay. Thank you.
A Ckay.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Any ot her Commi ssi oner
guestions for Dr. Marke?

COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  Yes.

JUDGE HATCHER  Yes. Conmi ssi oner
Kol kneyer, go ahead.

COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  Thank you,

Judge.
QUESTI ONS
BY COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:
Q Good nor ni ng.
A Good nor ni ng.
Q How many custoners do you think that this

woul d apply to?

A That's a -- that's a great question.
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| -- the -- the short answer is we don't know yet. W
have gotten -- we've received a fair anount of

i nquiries about the -- the issue. | think the concern
here is that it mght be larger than it otherw se
woul d be in light of the -- the Custoner First

experi ence.

Q So then do you think there would be a
charge? Because there's a charge to opt out.

A There is. There -- so there's a one-tine
charge and then there would be a reoccurring charge in
terns of -- of a neter reader actually comng to the
premse to read it.

Now, what we've -- we've proposed to
mtigate that is -- is a self-read. So custoners
woul d report that on their owmn. And then we've thrown
out, you know, the idea of either a biannual or an
annual read froman actual neter reader just to verify
t hose -- those usage nunbers.

And, you know, if they're off, then the
custoner would pay for that; if they've paid nore,
then they would be credited that.

Q We hear quite often --

A Ri ght .

Q -- about this opt-out charge, so yes. |

was even thinking maybe quarterly --
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A Ri ght .

O

-- you know, but okay. Thank you.
A Uh- huh.
JUDGE HATCHER: And Conmi ssi oner Col eman.
COMM SSI ONER COLEMAN:  Thank you.
QUESTI ONS
BY COVM SSI ONER COLENAN:
Q Dr. Marke, would you respond again to
t hat question Comm ssi oner Kol kneyer just asked? |
was review ng sonething with the Judge and mssed it.
A Sure, Comm ssioner. So Comm Ssioner
Kol kneyer asked if he believed -- whether or not |
t hought that the nunbers woul d be | arge novi ng
f orward.
And | think ny response was, you know,
It's a good question. There's a concern that it could
be quite | arge given just the feedback that we
received fromthe town halls and the |local public
heari ngs regarding neters and -- and just the
skepticism | guess, over the billing nunbers.
And then the foll ow up question was
around the charges thenselves. So right now
there's -- there's a charge for custonmers to opt out
and then there's a charge effectively for a future

neter reader. So, you know, absent having an AM and
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being able to do it renotely, sonebody woul d need to
go out there and read the neter.

What we have proposed in other filings to
mtigate those costs is to have custoners self-read
and report that to the utility. And then do, you
know, a -- a periodic check-up froma neter reader.

So instead of having 12 paynents, maybe, you know, two
or three or four just to verify that they are paying
what they're supposed to be paying.

Q But there is no penalty for m sreading.
Just charges could go up or charges could go down?

A That -- that's a good question. | nean,
as far as a penalty, | think the penal- -- so if a
custoner self-read and they -- they recorded the wong
anount, whenever a neter reader did show up on that
prem se to verify the usage, than that could be
charged to that custoner.

So if they've been m sreporting it,
they' Il be caught, you know, effectively when that
net er reader shows up.

Q What type of questions or information
have you gotten back fromthose possible consuners as
far as notification? Are we -- when we tal k about
opting out, | know that Enpire has stated that there

will be a notification in the Mssouri Register. Is
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t hat enough?

A No. The custoners would need to be
notified through the traditional channels as well. |
woul dn't put a lot of faith in custoners checki ng out
the M ssouri Register on a periodic basis.

Q Thank you.

COW SSI ONER COLEMAN:  Thank you, Judge.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, Conm ssioner.

Are there any ot her Conmm ssioner
guestions for Dr. Marke?

Ckay. Hearing none, we'll go -- no, no,
no. W got to go through our recross-examnm nation.

THE W TNESS: Yeah.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Yeah, | forget that al
the tinme too.

Ckay. Consuners Counci |l .

MR. COFFMAN: No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: MECG

MR, OPITZ: No, thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: Staff.

MR. VANDERGRI FF:  No, thank you, Your

Honor .
JUDGE HATCHER: Enpire.
M5. CARTER  Yes. Thank you.
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
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BY MS. CARTER:

Q Dr. Marke, currently we have -- Liberty
has -- Enpire here in Mssouri -- has an opt-out
provi sion, for exanple, right?

A That's correct.

Q And the rate for the opt-out was approved
by the Conmission in a rate case, correct?

A Correct.

Q And there was plenty of conmunication
when we were switching to AM to |let our custoners
know t hey could opt out, correct?

A There was conmuni cati on, yes.

Q Every comm -- every custoner was sent a
letter letting them know they could opt out?

A | believe that's correct.

Q And currently the percentage of custoners
opting out of AM is quite small; is that right?

A "Il take your word for it.

Q And at the local public hearings in this
case, when it would cone up about the new |l egislation
and the, quote, new ability to opt out, you and the
Conpany nmade it very clear at those |l ocal public
hearings that custoners already had that ability to
opt out of AM, correct?

A W -- | -- | wuld say that is true. |
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think I qualified that statenment. And | qualified
that statenment by saying the -- the issue today is
that those custoners woul d be charged nore than what
we are proposing noving forward, and that's that
self-read option.

Q Yes. Currently they're being charged the
Conmm ssi on - -

A That's right.

Q -- approved rate?

A Yeah.

Q And there wll be a rul emaki ng and new
tariffs under the tineline provided by the new
statute, correct?

A That is correct.

Q So then we woul d change our rate in
conpliance with that new statute, correct?

A Correct.

Q And currently Enpire's tariff also has a
self-read option, right?

A Yes.

Q Thank you. Those are all ny questions.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

And redirect.

MR WLLIAMS: | think there's no need.
Thank you.
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JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, Dr. Marke.
You are excused fromour w tness stand.

MR. PRINGLE: W do have Ms. Eubanks
her e.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. | was just
| ooki ng at what | was doi ng next.

Ms. Eubanks, conme on down. |If you'd
pl ease rai se your right hand.

(Wtness sworn.)

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. Please have a
seat and state and spell your nanme for our court
reporter.

THE WTNESS: d aire Eubanks, Cl-a-i-r-e
E- u- b-a-n-k-s.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

And are there any Conmm ssi oner questions

for the witness? Chair.

QUESTI ONS
BY CHAI R HAHN:

Q Good norni ng, Ms. Eubanks.

A Good nor ni ng.

Q Are there any other investor-owned

utilities with tariffs already in place in conpliance
wth the new Senate Bill 4 requirenent for neter

opt-out with the new | ower rate?
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A | believe that it was an issue in one of
the water cases recently. So off the top of ny head,
| -- 1 don't know, but | do think that it was -- it
was raised in another case recently.

Q Gkay. Thank you.

A You' re wel cone.

Q Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Are there any ot her
Commi ssi oner questions? Conm ssioner Kol kneyer.

COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  Thank you,

Judge.
QUESTI ONS
BY COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:
Q | don't know how to phrase it other than
what is in -- the new |language in the bill, what is

t hat proposed amount? Do you know what that is?

A So there is a -- thereis a nonthly fee
in the statute is ny recollection. It's been a couple
weeks since |'ve | ooked at it, so.

Q kay.

A Il -- 1 want to say -- | want to say
there's a $15 fee and then there's another fee, but
off the top of --

Q To sign on to it probably? To get on to

t he program
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A Yeah. Typ- -- like typically the way the
prograns have worked historically is that there is a
neter -- a neter-related fee to -- if they had an
existing AM neter and they're going to replace it
wth a standard neter, that typically there's a fee
there. And then there's also a nonthly fee for all

the costs that go into neter reading.

Q kay. The -- the -- so the proposed is
in the statute --

A It -- it is in the statute.

Q -- the 15 -- do you know what --

A That's nmy recollection. | really would

have to probably bring it up and verify.

Q That's fine.

A Yeah.

Q Do you know what Enpire's currently
char gi ng?

A | believe that those values are in the

direct testinony of Coty King.
Q kay. Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER: Any ot her Comm ssi oner

guestions for Ms. Eubanks?

QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER
Q The Bench does have one. | wanted to
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followup specifically on this self-read option. Are
any other utilities in Mssouri -- do they have a
self-read option?

A Yes. Yes. Oher -- other utilities in
M ssouri offer, within their AM opt-out program an
opportunity for the custoner to do self-reads.

Evergy M ssouri West in the nore recent
electric rate case, in that stipulation there was
| anguage around that, to ny recollection. And
specifically there was a cap on the nunber of
custoners that could do that.

So that is sonething, you know, that I
think in redirect of M. Marke -- Dr. Marke -- |I'm
sorry, it was the Conpany's cross-examn nation of
Dr. Marke tal ked about the -- the upcom ng rul enaki ng.
| believe that rul emaki ng hearing is next nonth or
maybe this nonth, so we'll be tal king about it again
here in a couple of weeks, | believe.

And, you know, there is -- there will be
both the rul emaking and then also tariff filings. So
while, you know, we didn't address it in the
stipulation and agreenent, there is still a
requirenment for the tariffs to be filed by a date
certain in the statute is ny recollection, so.

Q West is the only -- Evergy West is the
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only utility you're aware of in M ssouri?
A | believe -- | want to say Spire al so.
Q Ckay. GCkay. Thank you very nuch.
JUDGE HATCHER: That takes us to recross.
VECG
MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, Your Honor.
JUDGE HATCHER: Consuners Counci | .
MR. COFFMAN:  No questi ons.
JUDGE HATCHER: Enpire.
M5. CARTER  Yes, just one.
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY M. CARTER
Q Ms. Eubanks, but Enpire also has a
self-read option currently, as Dr. Marke affirnmed
whil e he was on the stand?
A | don't recall.
Q kay.
JUDGE HATCHER  Public Counsel.
MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you, no.
JUDGE HATCHER: And redirect?
M5. KLAUS: Thank you. Briefly.
Al exandra Kl aus on behal f of Staff.
REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. KLAUS:
Q Good norning, M. Eubanks.
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A Good nor ni ng.

Q | had to check what tine it was.

You' ve gotten sone questions on a few
topics. 1'd like to address a couple. You were asked
about other utilities using advanced nmeter opt-outs.
Do you renenber that question?

A | do.

Q And | think you had said that Coty King
had sone testinony on this topic and wanted to see if
you m ght have been thinking of a chart that M. King
had i ncl uded at page three of his direct testinony?

A Yes.

Q And just for clarity sake, that does
Identify Evergy M ssouri West; Spire M ssouri, Inc.;
Enpire Water; Liberty Uilities; Mssouri Water; and
Ameren M ssouri in that chart, correct?

A That's ny recoll ection, yes.

Q Thank you. You were al so asked about
fees and Senate Bill 4.

A Yes.

Q Do you renenber those questions?

A | did -- | do.

Q Al right. Pardon ne. Do you have a
copy of M. King's testinony with you?

A | do not.
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Q That's quite all right.
M5. KLAUS: One nonent, please.

BY Ms. KLAUS:

Q Well, | have a copy in front of ne here.
And |I'm | ooking at page two, footnote twd. And
M. King has cited to Senate Bill 4 and it including
new provisions, specifically at Section 386.820. 2,
sub two.

Wuld it -- would it sound correct to you
to say that that statute's going to say that the
one-tine fee cannot exceed $125?

A That sounds right, yes.

Q And does it sound right that the nonthly
fee may not exceed $15?

A Yes.

M5. KLAUS: No further questions. Thank
you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, Ms. Kl aus.
Good to have you back.

| think -- | think that's it. Thank you.
| appreciate you being here and filling in today.

THE W TNESS: Absolutely. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER  You're excused from our
w t ness st and.

Counsel, here is -- here is ny
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i nclination on what to do next. W are down to three
| ssues, plus the stipulation testinony, whatever we
want to talk -- however we want to describe that.

My thought is to adjourn for a | ong
| unch, the beginning of which nyself and the counsels
will stay in the roomto discuss what the schedul e
| ooks |i ke over the next day or two days.

I wll send all the Comm ssioners to
their lunch and then either e-nmail the Conm ssioners
that we are done for the day or e-nmail the
Comm ssioners that we're headi ng back at one o' clock
to take care of X, Y and Z issue and finish it up
t oday.

" m | ooking for sone input because this
Is just nme doing ny own thinking.

COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  Finish it.

JUDGE HATCHER: (kay. Let's have the
di scussion on the record about what we want to do next
t hen.

And, Madam Court Reporter, how are you
doi ng on needi ng a break?

THE COURT REPORTER |I'mfine. Thank
you.

JUDGE HATCHER: (Okay. Counsel, parties,

we are left with four itens to discuss. They are the
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conti nuati on of Custoner Experience, FAC, Ozark Beach
crane extension, and questions on the stipulation.

You all are nore famliar with your
W tnesses and who is assigned to which than | am Are
any of your w tnesses available to take those issues
up today? Again, Custonmer -- well, John Reed, we --
we should mark that one off. He's comng in tonorrow.

So FAC, Ozark Beach crane extension, or
stipul ation questions.

MR. WLLIAMS: Public Counsel's w tnesses
are all available today. GCeoff Marke is not avail able
t onor r ow.

JUDGE HATCHER: kay. So that | eans
towards nmaybe splitting up sone of these issues to it
today and we get Dr. Marke done for his part.

Any other parties want to chine in?

M. Vandergriff, thank you.

MR. VANDERGRI FF: Qur w tnesses are
avai | abl e.

M5. CARTER So Todd Tarter and Aaron
Doll are not available until tonorrow. And Brian
Ber kst resser.

JUDGE HATCHER: kay. W -- so it sounds
| i ke FAC m ght be tonorrow. Because Dr. Marke is not

on FAC, is that correct?
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MR. WLLIAMS: That is correct.

JUDGE HATCHER: (Okay. Let's put that on
tomorrow just for the nonent. Custoner Experience is
on tonorrow because that's when John Reed is
avai | abl e.

Ozark Bre- -- QOzark Beach crane extension
has Dr. Marke. Yep. Let's go with Ozark Beach crane

extension and we wll take up M. Berkstresser

tonorrow. And we can -- we can add in anybody t hat
needs to by WebEx.

M5. CARTER |'msorry, Judge, | did not
hear that.

JUDGE HATCHER: No, | was just -- | was

waiting for the eye contact. W're good?

M5. CARTER Yes. M. G ubbs?

M5. GRUBBS: Since opening statenents
have not been waived on the Ozark Beach crane
expansi on project, are we planning on having m ni
openi ngs or not?

MR WLLIAMS: | could waive. |If
everybody else is willing to waive, |I'll waive.

M5. GRUBBS: That works for the Conpany.
Just wanted to clarify.

JUDGE HATCHER: | appreciate that. Thank
you, Ms. G bbs [as said].
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MR. PRINGLE: Then as a Staff foll ow up,
are we still doing mni openings for the FAC i ssue?

MR. WLLIAMS: W can waive that.

JUDGE HATCHER: Yeah, let's not decide
that now That's -- that's tonorrow s problem

MR. PRINGLE: Happy to kick it.

JUDGE HATCHER: Let's go with Ozark Beach
crane extension. This is to be a litigated issue,
whi ch neans we will not be beginning with Conm ssi oner
guestions. This wll go through a nore nornm
process.

W will not need to introduce the w tness
testinony that's already been admtted and we w ||
skip the signatories to the agreenent
cross-exam nation of co-signatories. Qher than that,
this will go forward as a normal issue. You have just
heard all the parties agree to wai ve opening
st at enent s.

So we wll begin wth the Conpany
w tnesses with the notation that Brian Berkstresser is
going to testify tonorrow. That wll be Thursday.

Conpany, go ahead and call your w tness.

M5. GRUBBS: Wuld we be able to push
this til after lunch so that we can get copies of
testinmony? O at |least take a 15-minute break, if
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possi bl e?

JUDGE HATCHER. Wiy do you need copi es?

M5. GRUBBS. To take up to the stand.

JUDGE HATCHER: For her to reference or
to hand out?

M5. CGRUBBS: To reference.

MR, WLLIAMS: Judge, if it helps, Public
Counsel will waive cross of Ms. Enery. |It's
M. Berkstresser that we have questions for.

JUDGE HATCHER  Does that solve the
Conpany' s concern?

M5. CGRUBBS: Yes.

JUDCGE HATCHER: Perfect. M. Enery, cone
on down. You've already been sworn in. Go ahead and
have a seat. And go ahead with the -- with your
questions, Enpire. M. G ubbs.

CHARLOTTE EMERY,
havi ng been previously sworn, testified as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. GRUBBS:
Q Al right. Are you the sane Charlotte
Emery who testified earlier in this proceedi ng?
A | am
Q Al right. Do you have a copy wth you

then of your testinonies? You filed direct testinony,
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rebuttal testinony, surrebuttal/true-up direct
testinony, and true-up rebuttal testinony, Exhibits 17
t hrough 20 that have previously been admtted.

A | do.

Q kay. And you acknow edge that the
Conpany has nodified its positions as outlined in the
Non- Unani nous d obal Settlenment that was filed on
Oct ober 6th, 20257

A Yes.

M5. GRUBBS: Ms. Enery is tendered for
questioning. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you very nuch.

And we will first go to M. Opitz of
VECG.

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: And then Staff.

MR. GRAHAM No, thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Consuners Council .

MR. COFFMAN:  No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER  OPC.

MR. WLLIAMS: No questions, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Are there any
Commi ssi oner questions for Ms. Enery on the topic of
t he Ozark Beach crane extension?

Heari ng none -- yeah, that's it. Thank
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you. You're dism ssed fromour w tness stand,
Ms. Emery. | appreciate you being here today and
filling in on several issues.

THE W TNESS:  Yes.

JUDGE HATCHER: And again, for the
record, we will be calling Brian Berkstresser tonorrow
to testify on this issue. In the neantine, let's go

to Staff. Please go ahead and call your w tness.

MR. GRAHAM Brodrick N eneier.
JUDGE HATCHER: M. Nieneier, please

rai se your right hand.

(Wtness sworn.)

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. Pl ease state

and spell your nanme for our court reporter.

THE W TNESS: Brodrick N eneier,
d-r-i-c-k NNi-e-me-i-e-r. D d you get that?
JUDGE HATCHER: Al right. And we'll go

ahead wth questions. Staff, your wtness.

MR. GRAHAM  Thank you, Your Honor.
BRODRI CK NI EMEI ER,

being first duly sworn, testified as foll ows:

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR CGRAHAM

Q Brodrick, what is the nature of your

current enpl oynent?
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A | am enpl oyed as an Associ ate Engineer in
t he Engi neering Anal ysis Departnment of the M ssour
Publ i c Service Conm ssi on.

Q And in connection with that enpl oynent,
did you prepare sone direct testinony in this case;
nanmely, Exhibits 115 and 115-C?

A Yes.

Q kay. And it's your understandi ng that
t hose exhi bits have been admtted into evi dence.

A Yes.

Q And you are aware of a d obal
Non- Unani nous Stipulation that's been reached in this
case.

A Yes.

Q And do you understand that any positions
or comm ssion -- or do you agree that any positions or
opi nions that you've expressed in the pre-filed
testinony that | just nmentioned will be deened to be
i n accord with the Staff's position; that is, that
this stipulation be approved?

A Yes.

MR GRAHAM |'Ill tender the w tness.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. And we wll
go to MECG

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, Your Honor.
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JUDGE HATCHER: Consuners Counci | .

MR. COFFMAN: No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Enpire.

M5. GRUBBS: No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: Public Counsel .

MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR W LLI AVS:

Q Good norning, M. N eneier.
A Good nor ni ng.
Q Do you know when the dam at Ozark Beach

was built?

A Not off the top of ny head.

Q More than -- or about 100 years ago?

A That sounds about right.

Q Do you know when the crane was built on
t he danf?

A | do not know.

Q Do you have any idea? | nean, has it

been there for decades or was it sonething that was
built the past 20 years?

MR. GRAHAM  (Obj ection, asked and
answered. He's calling for conjecture now and
speculation. The wtness said he didn't know.

MR W LLI AVS: He said he didn't know a
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specific date. I'mjust trying to find out if he has
any i dea.

MR. GRAHAM Stand on the objection as
t he question was originally asked.
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. 1'Il overrule
it and allowa little bit. But let's nove forward.
THE WTNESS: | do not know the date when
It was -- when the crane was added.
BY MR W LLI AMS:
Q Have you observed the crane?
A | have seen pictures of the crane. |
have not been to the Ozark Beach site.
Q Do you know when t he extension was done?
A The extension was conplete in 20283.
Q No further questions.
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. WIIians.
Then we'll go to Comm ssioner questions.
Are there any Conm ssioner questions for M. Nieneier?
Heari ng none, we wll go back to
recross-exam nation. No, just redirect. M m stake.
Redirect, Staff.
MR. GRAHAM No, thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. N eneier.
Appreci ate you being here today, especially on short
noti ce as we nove things around.
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THE W TNESS: Yeah.

JUDGE HATCHER: By ny schedul e, that
takes us to Dr. Marke. And, Dr. Marke, you've al ready
been sworn in, so please go ahead and have a seat.
And your -- your swearing in still counts for your
testinony now.

Publ i ¢ Counsel, your w tness.

MR. WLLIAMS: Tender himfor
cross-exam nation and questions fromthe Bench.

JUDGE HATCHER: (Ckay. Consuners Counci l .

MR. COFFMAN:  No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: And M. Opitz.

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: M. G aham

MR. GRAHAM No, thank you, Your Honor.

JUDGE HATCHER: Enpire.

M5. GRUBBS: No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: Are there any questions
fromthe Comm ssioners for Dr. Marke on the issue of
t he Ozark Beach crane extension? Comm ssioner
Kol kneyer .

COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  Briefly. Thank
you, Judge.

CEOFF MARKE,

havi ng been previously sworn, testified as foll ows:
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QUESTI ONS
BY COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:
Q What's OPC s objection to the crane?
A So the -- this project was scheduled to
be a 10,000 dollar project. It ended up being a
2.9 mllion dollar project. So it went, you know,
3000 percent over its planned budget.

The crane itself has been operational for
over 100 years. Effectively you take a barge down the
river to add on supplies. That nethod' s worked for
over 100 years. The Conpany pivoted and effectively
created a road and a different set-up to -- to set up
this crane.

The concern is two-fold. One, just the
overall cost increase. W' ve been doing things for
over 100 years, it didn't pose any significant risk or
problem So we -- we questioned why we needed to
change course on that.

And the second issue that | raised was
over statutory | anguage directed over PISA
I nvestnments. So this -- the SB 564, the statute that
enabl es PISA, directs conpanies for projects that are
over 10 mllion dollars, | believe is -- is the
figure, to provide a cost-benefit study.

Enpire, before that PISA | egislation
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was -- was agreed to, had agreed in a rate case that
future CapEx investnents over one mllion dollars
woul d undergo a cost-benefit study. Now, we have
effectively -- | say we. OPC and Staff have
effectively waived that condition, in part -- for the
| ast few years -- for the last four or five years now,
in part, for two reasons.

One, out of request fromthe Conpany
itself. It said they really just didn't have their --
their stuff together to provide that sort of analysis.
The -- ny point of contact wwth the com -- with the
Conpany was the nane -- a man naned Dmtry Bal ashov,
who no | onger works with the Conpany. He had filed
testi nony speaki ng about this, anongst other things,
in the original filing. But that contact is no | onger
wor ki ng for the Conpany.

W extended the pause not only for -- to
allow the Conpany to get their stuff together, but to
help i nforma val ue-of-1ost-load study. So we've got
a concurrent docket open up right now that's | ooking
at the value of |ost |oad.

That input is -- is critically inportant
for any cost-benefit analysis. |It's basically how we
justify nmoving with these investnents. W expect that

to be done by the end of the year.
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So our objection to this was really it
just -- it looks like an outlier, it didn't nmake
sense. You' ve been doing things for -- one way for
100-plus years. W' ve had concerns fromthe public at
| ar ge about this conpany focusing on CapEx investnents
as opposed to affordability.

W felt like this was a perfect exanple
of that. An illustrative exanple of sonething that
shoul d have cost 10,000 dollars, but it ended up
costing 2.9 mllion dollars.

Q Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Any further Conm ssioner
guestions for Dr. Mark? Okay. That wll take us to
recross-examnation. And we begin with Consuners
Counci |

MR. COFFMAN:  No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER  MECG.

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Staff.

VMR. GRAHAM  No, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Enpire.

M5. GRUBBS: Yes, Your Honor.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. GRUBBS:

Q Good afternoon -- or | guess we're stil
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in norning, huh? It's flying by.

Dr. Marke, have you reviewed the
surrebuttal testinony of Conpany Wtness Brian
Ber kstresser, which has been marked as Exhibit 3 in
t hi s docket ?

A | believe | have. | don't have a copy of
that with ne.

Q | can provide you one if you'd Iike.

A Sur e.

Q Wth the assistance of M. Vandergriff,

t hank you.
Does that refresh your recollection
seeing it there, sir?

A Yes.

Q (kay. So do you recall at pages one
t hrough three where M. Berk- -- M. Berkstresser
explains that the original estimate reflected the cost
of a feasibility study to assess whether the project
was viable? 1'd call your attention to page one,
| ines 19 through 20, please.

A | see that.

Q And that -- the feasibility study, that
eval uat ed whet her the project was viable, but -- but
al so any benefits fromthat project, correct?

A That's what it says.
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Q And have you reviewed that feasibility
st udy?

A | have not had an opportunity to | ook at
that feasibility study.

Q So are you also famliar with
M. Berkstresser's explanation of the estimate for the
crane extension project being 3.5 mllion dollars, the
final cost actually being over half a mllion dollars
under budget at 2.9 mllion, and the project going
i nto service in Decenber 2022 and addressing safety
| ssues at the dan? Do you recall that?

A So | guess | take issue with -- so the
initial estimte was $10, 000.

Q For a feasibility study, correct?

A Could you point ne to that in his
testi nony?

Q Pages 19 t hrough 20 on page 1.

A | only have three pages.

Q Page one, lines 19 through 20.

A Oh, lines.

Q ' msorry, yes.

A The initial estimate reflected the cost
of feasibility study to assess whether the project was
vi abl e?

Q Yes. So that approxi mate $10, 000 t hat
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you were referring to.

A | guess | would have to verify this.

Q So you -- you didn't verify it when you
reviewed his surrebuttal testinony? Do you have any
reason to question that representation?

A | do. So | guess what |I'm confused right
now, is the Conpany suggesting that the cost was never
$10, 0007

Q The cost -- if | may?

A Pl ease.

Q | believe that the Conpany has descri bed
that that was for -- the initial estimate was for a
feasibility study to determ ne whether it was a viable
project. And then afterwards, there was a revised
esti mat e.

A Soif -- if that's the case, then
M. Neneier's testinony was -- was -- i S incorrect
then. Because his testinony suggests that the
study -- that the cost was $10, 000.

Q Well, | believe if you | ook at -- and
"Il have to pull up M. N eneier's testinony.

A kay.

Q But a later round of testinony clarified
that. If | may have just a nonent to -- so |I'm

referring to -- I"'msorry. | don't have a copy of it

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N O O A~ W N PP

N DN D DD DNDDNN PP PR R
aa A~ W N P O © 00 N O 0o A W N +— O

Evidentiary Hearing Vol XlI
October 15, 2025 Page 105

Wi th you, but -- or with ne.

But under Staff's Statenment of Position
In this case under |Issue 89, the Ozark Beach crane
extension for Issue A Wre the costs of the crane
extension project at Ozark Beach prudently incurred?
Staff's position is: Yes, the project was reasonabl e
as Enpire provided reasonable -- or provided
reasonabl e safety concerns as justification for the
proj ect.

And then it footnotes Footnote 99 to
page 9, lines 14 through 16 of Brodrick N eneier's
surrebuttal testinony.

Il wll have to ask for Staff if they have
a copy of it. Pardon ne.

A Not a problem
Q Thanks again for the assistance from
St af f.

May -- may | approach M. -- Dr. Marke?

MR. WLSON. She pointed ne to page
ei ght, |ine nine.

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

M5. GRUBBS: Thank you for the assistance
I n wal king the exhibit up.

BY M5, GRUBBS:

Q If -- if | could call your attention,
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Dr. Marke, to the bottom of page eight of

M. N eneier's surrebuttal testinony and then
follow ng onto page nine. |f you want a couple
mnutes to reviewthat.

A So I've reviewed it. Wuld you m nd
asking the question again? Just -- | want to be sure
that | understand this fully.

Q Sure. So | think -- | should actually
circle back to one of ny prior questions. That you
are aware, as -- as M. Berkstresser explained in his
surrebuttal testinony, that the original estinmate
reflected the cost of a feasibility study to assess
whet her the project was viable?

A So |'ve got two testinonies in front of
nme. |'ve got the Conpany's w tness who clains that
this is just a msunderstanding, if | understand
correctly. That the -- there's a $10,000 study. The
$10, 000 study suggested the project would cost
3.5 mllion dollars, it was actually 2.9 mllion
dol | ars.

And then we've got Staff's suppl enent al
direct or -- surrebuttal direct -- sorry, surrebuttal
and true-up direct that -- and you can hel p ne point
this out. But | don't see anything in M. N eneier's

testinony that suggests anything about a feasibility
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study or the $10, 000.

In fact, what | see is -- and I'IlIl just
gquote it. Because the first part of M. N eneier's
testinony tal ks about whether or not this is a
gualifying investnent for PISA

The second part says: Finally, Staff
does not agree that a $3,000 cost overrun is
I nherently inprudent. And then it goes on about that.

But I -- | don't see anything that
suggests that this is a $10,000 -- or that -- if -- if
I"'mto read M. N eneier's testinony it was still over
$3, 000, not $600, 000 | ess than what was pl anned.

Q Sorry. Three -- are you saying
3.5 mllion instead of $3,000?

A He says that the -- the Staff does not
agree that a $3,000 -- 3000 percent cost overrun is
I nherently inprudent. So that's the disconnect that
|'"ve got. I'mrelying, in part, on Staff's testinony
Identifying that this is a cost overrun and then
def endi ng that cost overrun.

What -- the new information that |'ve
heard today is that, in fact, that there was never a
cost overrun. |In fact, the -- it -- it's a cost
savi ngs based off --

Q Under budget.
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A Under budget, there you go. So this is
new i nformation to ne. And I'mtrying to reconcile
that wiwth -- with the Staff testinony that doesn't
seemto support what you're saying.

Q Ckay. Well, so then you had revi ewed
Brian Berkstresser's surrebuttal testinony that
describes that that was an initial feasibility
estimate. There was a ms- --

A | see that.

Q -- a mscharacterization maybe of then
what becane the full project scope.

A So at this point, if that is the case --
and ny rebuttal testinony actually envisioned this as
a potential issue. You know, | wote down: As such,
I'"'mrecommending a 2.9 mllion dollar cost
di sal | owance of expenditures. Further discovery and
di al ogue wth parties is warranted, and ny testinony
can be adjusted accordingly.

"' m not agai nst continuing that dial ogue
If that is truly the case, but | think we woul d need
to get sonme confirmation that it was never a $10, 000
budget ed esti nate.

Q And you -- you didn't seek clarification
of that just after reading M. Berkstresser's

surrebuttal testinmony? | just want to clarify.
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A | did not. | nean, the --

Q kay.

A -- the one-line sentence didn't call out
t he $10, 000 study, so that -- that is --

Q So it was that -- | think the way
M. Nieneier described it, a 3,000 doll- -- or
3000 percent increase, that was your nain concern.

Not that it was addressing safety issues and that it
ultimtely was under budget by over half a mllion
dollars conpared to the full scope project costs?

A So -- so to be clear, you know, ny -- ny
concern is over -- over a perceived investnent --
focus on CapEx investnents for projects. W didn't
have any assurance in terns of -- of a feasibility or
cost-effective-benefit study to support it.

| relied on Staff's position that this
was a cost overrun of orders of magnitude. W
followed -- we raised this as an issue. The first
time we are hearing -- the first tinme that |I'm hearing
nowis -- is today that, in fact, it was never
$10,000, it was 3.5 mllion dollars. And that
number -- I'mtrying to reconcile this through our
di scussion right now.

Q Ckay. On the PISA piece of it, | just
want to clarify. Do -- do you recall review ng the
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surrebuttal /true-up direct testinony of Conpany
Wtness Charlotte Enery, which has been admtted as
Exhi bit 19 that explains why the Conpany believes that
it is PISA eligible?

A Yes.

Q kay. No -- no concerns or disagreenent
there then that it is PISA eligible?

A | would agree with that now.

Q kay. | believe those are all ny
guestions. Thank you very nuch.

M5. GRUBBS. And appreciate again the
assistance in getting copies from-- from Staff.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

That will take us to Conm ssioner
guestions for Dr. Marke on the Ozark crane extension
| ssue. Are there any Conm ssioner questions for
Dr. Marke?

Al right. Hearing none, we wll go back
t hrough recross. Consuners Council .

MR. COFFMAN: No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: MECG i s indicating no.

Staff.
MR GRAHAM  No.
JUDGE HATCHER: Enpire.
M5. GRUBBS: No, Your Honor.
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JUDGE HATCHER: W didn't need to do
recross, did we? Doesn't matter, everybody said no.
Redi rect ?

MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you, Judge.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR W LLI AMS:

Q G ven all of the information you' ve
| earned during the redirect -- earlier Conm ssioner
Kol kneyer asked you what Public Counsel's concerns
wer e about the Ozark Beach crane extension.

Are they really two? Are they now
whet her or not it was a project that should have been
undertaken at that tine, if the safety reasons given
really justified the project; and the other --
assum ng the bookkeeping error was made as it's been
stated in | guess M. Berkstresser's testinony, does
that al so cause a concern about recordkeeping at
Enpi re?

A It does. It does. That -- at this point
|'ve got nore questions than -- than | had answers
before | started this.

Q Are those sta- -- are both of those
Publ i c Counsel's concerns at this nonent?

A Yes.

M5. GRUBBS. bjection, this is beyond
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the scope of what | discussed on -- on
Cross-exam nati on.

JUDGE HATCHER: What was your questi on,
M. WIIlians?

MR. WLLIAMS: | was asking if Public
Counsel's tw -- concerns currently are about Enpire's
bookkeepi ng and al so whether or not there was really
justification sufficient to warrant building the crane
extension at the tine it was done.

JUDGE HATCHER: Overruled. I'Il -- 1'd
| i ke the answer.

THE W TNESS:  Yes.

MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you. No further
questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: kay. That, | believe,
concl udes the issue of the Ozark crane extension.

Dr. Marke, thank you. You are excused
fromthe witness stand on this issue.

Counsel, before | break for lunch, | have
an idea. W are down to three live issues, two of
whi ch have a nunber of wi tnesses that are only
avai |l abl e tonorrow. That's Custoner Experience and
FAC. Qur third issue was ny add-on tal king -- having
sone testinony about the stipulation. Yes, sir.

MR, WLLIAMS: W still have one w tness
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on Ozark Beach crane extension.
M5. GRUBBS: Yes, | was going to call
that out. M. Berkstresser will need to appear
t onor r ow.
JUDGE HATCHER: Ch, right, right, right.
Tonorrow. He's tonorrow. He's tonmorrow. |'ve got
that on ny list for tonmorrow.  Yes.
The stipulation. Can we nove that to
after lunch today?
MR WLLIAMS: ['mnot going to object to
that. | nmean, | -- it's up to the Comm ssion, so.
JUDGE HATCHER: Wbul d you have a w tness?
| would presune it would be Dr. Marke, but |I'm not
sure. Well, let nme back up.
MR WLLIAMS: W didn't sign onto it so
It depends on -- I'mnot sure what you're |ooking for
us fromus or with regard to it.
JUDGE HATCHER: Fair enough. The
Comm ssi on has questions on the stipulation. And we
were tal king earlier about adding that on as an issue
In the case to have witnesses -- have sone questions
specifically by the Comm ssioners, perhaps in
cross-exam nation as well.
My thought process would be -- | think
|'"'mrepeating this correctly. The Conpany said
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Ms. Enmery would be the main answerer on the
stipulation. | believe Staff said or indicated -- or
maybe |I'mmaking it up -- that Sarah Lange woul d be

t he person?

MR. VANDERGRI FF: W have Sarah Lange, we
have J Luebbert, we have Kim Boli n.

JUDGE HATCHER. Okay. OCh, that's right,
Ms. Bolin.

MR. VANDERGRI FF: And C ai re Eubanks.

JUDGE HATCHER: | amthinking let's break
for Tunch. And after lunch, let's conme back with
W tnesses on the stipulation to answer -- | have about
a handful -- nmaybe half a dozen questions. And then
we'll go through the sanme cross-exam nation,
et cetera.

| understand -- | understand that this
isn't areal issue, that this is not sonething that
the parties submtted for witnesses so this is a
little ad hoc. So |I'm | ooking for sone feedback.

If OPC would like to call a wtness, |
woul d be anenable to that to kind of go around -- or
sone -- sone |latitude here is what |'m | ooking for.
M. WIIians.

MR WLLIAMS: | -- at this point | don't

know whether |I'd want to call soneone or not. | have
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no i dea about what you're going to ask regarding the
agreenent, which is now change in positions.

JUDGE HATCHER: Yes. Ms. Carter.

M5. CARTER  Judge, | was going to say if
you actually have a list of questions already, it
woul d be super hel pful if you could share those with
us, and then let us have our lunch break and we'd neke
sure and have the answers.

It would al so be hel pful for us if OPC s
going to put up a wtness, then for the other parties
to know how to handle that, if we're going to be
Ccross-examning that witness. So the nore information
we could, get the better, in summary.

JUDGE HATCHER: Done. Sold. Let's break
for lunch. W'Ill cone back at 1:00. At 1:00. | wll
e-mai |l counsel for the parties the |list of questions.

M. WIllianms, then after review of the
guestions, if you have a better idea of how Public
Counsel wants to nove forward, |et us know at the
begi nni ng when we cone back. Wuld that be
sufficient?

MR WLLIAMS:  Sure.

JUDGE HATCHER  Ckay. | think that
sounds |like a good plan. Let's try and wap up

guestions on the stipulation today. W are at recess
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until one o'clock and we are off the record.

(A recess was taken.)

JUDGE HATCHER: Let's go back on the
record. We are continuing the evidentiary hearing in
general rate case ER-2024-0261. This is in the matter
of the Enpire District Electric Conpany, doing
busi ness as Liberty.

We have concl uded several topics entered
into the record. | would like to just review  For
the next two days, we will be discussing four issues.
Tonorrow wi || be the continuation of Custoner
Experience with the appearance of Wtness John Reed.
Tomorrow wi Il al so include FAC. And tonorrow w ||
I ncl ude Wtness Berkstresser testifying on the Ozark
Crane issue.

Today we are going to finish off by
di scussing the stipulation. This is not a pending
stipulation. It is a non-global, non- -- or it's a
G obal Non-Unani nous Stipul ation that has been
objected to by the parties. |t has becone a position
statenent of the parties. However, the Conm ssioners
do have sone questions about the various details
contained in that docunent.

So to that end, let's start the issue of

the stipulation. And we have been going with the
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Conpany going first. Counsel.

MR. VANDERGRI FF:  Your Honor, before we
begin, 1'd like to offer one additional docunent, as
previously discussed earlier. It is the nonthly bil
| npact for residential custoners for the tinme-choice
rate pl an.

We coul d probably enter it into evidence
as Exhibit 180 as a denonstrative exhibit. The
stipulation itself resolves nearly all the contested
| ssues is our position, but it does not lay out a
single consolidated format for this agreenent on a
nont h-to-nonth basis and this is the exhibit to
rectify that.

JUDGE HATCHER: What's the source of this
exhi bit?

MR. VANDERGRI FF: It was derived from
using our -- the stipulation and agreenent by our
Staff Expert Sarah Lange, who is here today.

JUDGE HATCHER: M. WI Il i ans.

MR. WLLIAMS: | know it's denonstrative,
at least that's the way he's put it forward, but |
don't know that it has nmuch neani ng w t hout sone
expl anati on.

JUDGE HATCHER: | -- | note that
Ms. Lange is in the audience and she may be called to
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testify on the stipulation. M. WIIlianms, would that
address your initial concern that we would have
sone -- the person who produced this table on the
stand to ask questions of?

MR. WLLIAMS: Potentially, sure.

JUDGE HATCHER: Let's hold off on 180
until we get to that point and then we wll revisit
t he issue.

| do not have a list of wtnesses, soO

Enpi r e.

M5. CARTER  Judge, we would start with
Charlotte Enery. She wll be able to answer nost of
t hose questions you provided by e-nmail. Candice

Kelly, I amhoping is on WebEx, we caught her driving.
And she woul d be needed to answer one of the
gquesti ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: Okay. Ms. Enery, you've
al ready been sworn in. That still applies. Please go
ahead and take a seat.

THE W TNESS: Yes. Sorry.

JUDGE HATCHER: No, you're fine.

THE W TNESS: Ckay.

JUDGE HATCHER: Go ahead. O are we

starting wth Conm ssioner questions? | really
hadn't --
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M5. CARTER: That is ny assunption.

JUDGE HATCHER: Yes. Yes. Let's do
that. |'m seeing nodding heads. Let's go ahead and
start with Comm ssioner questions. Chair.

CHARLOTTE EMERY,
havi ng been previously sworn, testified as foll ows:
QUESTI ONS
BY CHAI R HAHN:

Q Good afternoon, Ms. Enery.

A Good afternoon.

Q Were you -- | assune you hel ped oversee
the Liberty Water rate case; is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Ckay. In the Liberty Water rate case, |
recalled I think yesterday that OPC was a signhatory to
that agreenent. |Is -- was OPC a signatory to that
stipul ation and agreenent?

A Yes, they were.

Q Ckay. And that stipulation and agreenent
did have phased-in rates, right?

A Correct. Phase-in for Bolivar.

Q And that phase-in did have a carrying
cost associated -- or it did not?

A It did not have a carrying cost
associated with it.
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Q kay. And this agreenent simlarly does
not have a carrying cost associated with that
phase-in?

A Correct.

Q Ckay. Thank you for clarifying.

A Yes.

Q Nunmber 28 of the stipulation and
agreenent is on arrearage forgiveness, the 8.5 mllion
dol l ar custonmer program Can you talk to nme about
what the funding source of that programis? If it's
sone sharehol der dollars, sonme custoner dollars or all
of one or the other?

A So howit -- it -- fromny understanding
of howit wll work, it wll be an 85 mllion dollar
paynent to -- to custoner arrearages provided by
sharehol ders. And -- yeah, so that's --

Q So it's 100 percent sharehol der funded?

A Yeah.

Q Thank you. Nunber 36 of the stipulation
and agreenent is on reliability. That Enpire wl|
collaborate wth Staff and OPC to work to reduce the
duration of outages.

Talk to ne about what that neans. |
think we did hear various service issues throughout

the I ocal public hearing, but there's really not a | ot
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of detail here. Can you --

A Yeah. And | al so maybe encourage on
the -- on the Staff to their -- but 1'll give you ny
understanding of it.

We did have several coments at | ocal
public hearings, and | amcertain there were nore
comments filed informally as well within the -- within
the case. Specifically there were also sone very
poi nted data requests in regards to certain
substations and areas where certain custoners are
getting -- had sone reliability issues.

And so we have conmitted to being able to
i dentify those worst-performng circuits associ ated
with certain custoners that keep experiencing -- |'m
going to call themnonentarily outages. | think
that's -- or blinking of |ights.

We have had several custoners indicate
that they | ost food, appliances, various itens. And
so just needing to ook further into that to nake sure
we better understand what m ght be occurring on our
system

Q Ckay. Yesterday | had asked Ms. Walt
sone questions about in-person Custoner Service
Centers and there's nothing in the stipulation and

agreenent about in-person Custoner Service Centers. |
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continue to be concerned about that given the feedback
fromthe | ocal public hearings.

But are there any other efforts other
than those just nentioned yesterday by Ms. Walt in her
testi nony about custoner service that are not
specifically laid out in the stipulation and
agreenent ?

A So | mght circle back to the
conversation you had wwth Ms. Wlt. | -- | had a
di scussion with Ms. Walt directly through ny
supervi sor, and we want to nake sure that we
communi cate back to -- to you your concern.

W heard what was sai d yesterday and
specifically in regards to conplex billing issues
where a custoner needs to sit face-to-face in order to
get those issues renedied.

And so while we are very hopeful that
the -- the -- the issuances of -- of issues are
declining and that will be |less prevalent, we
recogni ze that that is very nuch a service that we
need to provide to our -- to our custoners.

So intalking wwth Ms. Walt, we're going
to have appointnents available in our Aurora Service
Center. So when custoners in that Aurora area have

| ssues that they need to conme in and speak
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face-to-face with our custoner service, that we wl|
have fol ks there available for them

And maybe even nore inportantly, we're
goi ng have the right folks. So when they nmake that
appoi ntnent, that we know what issues that particul ar
custonmer has so we can better serve themat that tine.

Q That is a -- nuch inproved. Thank you
very nuch.

A You' re wel cone.

JUDGE HATCHER: Commi ssi oner Kol kneyer.

COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  Thank you,
Judge.

QUESTI ONS
BY COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:

Q Good afternoon.

A Good afternoon.

Q | thought | heard yesterday that the
Aurora Service Center was cl osed?

A It is. It -- the custoner service side
there -- it doesn't take customer wal k-ins, but it --
It Is a service center for our operations.

Q Qperations only?

A Yeah.

Q Ckay.

A But we're going to -- by appointnent, so
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we can nmake sure that we have the right fol ks there,
we're going to commit to having custoner service. And
frankly, if we need a billing person there, if we need
a neter person there, we're going to nake sure that we
have the right people there to address custoner
| ssues.

Q kay. Thank you.

A Uh- huh.

JUDGE HATCHER: Are there any other
Commi ssi oner questions?
QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER:

Q kay. | do have several Bench questi ons,
and these are going to be the ones that | e-mail ed
earlier.

A kay.

Q So the first one, paragraph ten cites to
Exhibit A, the proposed depreciation rates. Paragraph
ten states that there is good cause to adopt these
rates and accounts in lieu of current
Comm ssi on-approved FERC US of A -- USQOA.

It -- is it the anortization of conputer
software that is in conflict with the USOA? [|f not,
pl ease identify all depreciation rates that are in
conflict.
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A Yeah, it is not -- to ny understandi ng,
it's not related to the conputer. But what it relates
tois the fact that FERC Order 898 becane effective in
January of 2025, which further broke out depreciation
rates for very specific functional property. And so
we went ahead and are getting depreciation rates to
conply with the FERC Order 898.

Q And the second question is on paragraph
16, which refers to tax equity distribution. Can the
Conpany or Staff provide a nore detail ed | ook about
what this paragraph pertains to?

A Yeah, | mght defer nore to the Staff
W tness on that. | -- | can, however, answer your --
what | think is going to be your second question.

Q And then the next question --

A Yeah.

Q -- absolutely. Can Liberty provide nore
detail of when the tax equity partner distributions
began in 2016 and how far ahead of that date Liberty
will file its proposal for the rate-nmaking treatnent
of those funds?

A Sure. | checked with our tax
accountants -- or accountants on this and they
I ndi cated that the actual equity distribution

agreenment that we have with our tax equity partner
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doesn't specify a specific date for those
distributions, only that they occur in 2026.

Ri ght now they're contenplating doing it
on a quarterly basis, but | can also say we w ||
commt -- the Conpany can commt to filing it 30 days
before any distribution is nade.

Q Thank you. And I'll just nove right down
the list to question nunber three. This is on
paragraph 20. This refers to ethics and capital- --
capitalization internal audits.

Now | ' mreadi ng the second part of the
question: Can Staff provide nore detail of what these
audits are intended to provide? | think we'll skip
that one. Thank you.

Question four, paragraph 23 refers to the
di sconti nuance of excess EADIT tracker. This is
| ssue 129.

A Uh- huh.

Q Was this tracker specifically for
unprotected property or also for protected property?

A Wien it was initially authorized by the
Comm ssion, it was for protected and unprotected.

Q How wi || the remaining protected excess
EADI T be treated in future rate cases?

A Yeah. So we've agreed to do the Reverse
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South Georgia Method instead of the ARAM net hod f or
anortization. So we're just changing the type of
anortization nethod on it, but we will continue to
fl ow that through our revenue requirenent as an
adjustnent. | believe it reduces tax expense.

Q kay. And there was testinony on that
Sout h Georgia nethod, right?

A Yes. Conpany Wtness M chel MCuen.

Q Last two. Paragraph 26 refers to the
revised tariff to reflect the new cal cul ati on net hod
for budget billing. Wose testinony contains a
description of the, quote, new nethod?

A So | believe that is the -- the question
that, unfortunately, |I'mnot able to answer. But |
t hi nk Candice Kelly may be online to answer that one.

Q kay. We'll circle back around and catch
her when she's online.

Last question. There's no exhibit that
I ncl udes the agreed plant and accunul at ed depreci ation
reserve bal ances as of the true-up date, March 31st,
2025. Since there were issues related to both plant
and reserve, wll there be an exhibit that quantifies
the plant and reserve bal ances as of the true-up date?

A No, it's not our intention that it's

needed. The 97 mllion was a -- just an agreed-upon
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rate -- rate revenue increase. W don't feel it's
needed at this tine.

Q And that |eads to the next question.

Wn't those anounts be needed going forward | eadi ng up
to Liberty's next rate case?

A | haven't had a need to use them | can
specifically say in our '21 rate case where we had a
stipulation and agreenent, there was no agreenent
needed that stipulated the specific plant in service
and accunul at ed depreci ati on bal ances.

Q Ckay. Those are all the questions |
have.

JUDGE HATCHER: | will ask the
Comm ssioners one last tinme if there are any
Commi ssi oner questions?

Ckay. Hearing none, we will go to our
recross-examnation. M. Qpitz indicates he has no
guestions. Staff.

MR. VANDERGRI FF: No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: Consuners Counci | .

MR. COFFMAN:  No questi ons.

JUDCGE HATCHER: Public Counsel .

MR WLLIAMS: Thank you.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR W LLI AVS:
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Q And it relates to the phase-in. Was the
Li berty Water case WR-2024-0 -- 0104? |Is that the
case nunber for that case?

A Subj ect to check, M. Wllians. | -- |
don't have that nunber in front of ne.

Q And while no carrying costs are specified
in the stipulation and agreenent, there is a basing of
the deferred anount for the phase-in of rates, is
t here not?

A In which case are you referring --

Q The current case.

A -- inthe -- the water case or the --

Q No.

A -- current electric case.

Q Thi s case.

A Yes. Which is simlar to howit was
wor ded i nside of our water case as well.

Q So the water case includes a rate-basing
of the deferred anounts?

A Yes, it does.

Q And that would be reflected in the docket
In that case, correct?

A | believe it's in the order.

Q And in the water case, was not Bolivar a
party in that case?
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A The City of Bolivar was a -- was a
st akehol der, yes.
Q And that rate case was about rates that
apply in Bolivar. |Is that not correct?
A Bolivar and all of our service areas that
M ssouri Water serves, but yes.
Q Was the phase-in applicable to the
entirety of your water service area or only Bolivar?
A Bol i var.
Q Thank you.
A Uh- huh.
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. WIIians.
And then we'll go back to redirect.
M5. CARTER | have no questions.
And -- and, Judge, |1'd say Ms. Kelly is
on the |ine.
JUDGE HATCHER: Perf ect.
Ms. Enery, | appreciate you being here
agai n today.
Let's go ahead and -- remind ne the
W t ness' s nane.
M5. CARTER  Candice Kelly.
JUDGE HATCHER: Candice Kel ly, thank you.
M5. CARTER And she was on the stand
previously.
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JUDGE HATCHER: Ms. Kelly, can you speak
up i f you hear ne?

THE W TNESS: (Good afternoon, Judge. |
am here.

JUDGE HATCHER: Excellent. Thank you.

| don't believe we have sworn in
Ms. Kelly yet.

THE W TNESS: Yest erday.

JUDGE HATCHER: W did. That's right,
yesterday. Thank you.

M5. CARTER  Judge, she was, however,
excused because she wasn't planning to be on the stand
again, if you would like to swear her in again.

JUDGE HATCHER: No, | think it --

M5. CARTER  Ckay.

JUDGE HATCHER: -- it certainly applies
since we're still in the sanme proceedi ng.

So, Ms. Kelly, we're going to ask you
sone questions about the stipulation and agreenent.

Are there any Conm ssioner questions for
Ms. Kelly?

Ckay. And the Bench does have one. Let
me find out where that went. |'mgoing to |look to the
audi ence and maybe Ms. Enery, if they could give ne

the nunber. Was it question five? It was question
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five. Thank you.
CANDI CE KELLY,
havi ng been previously sworn, testified as foll ows:
QUESTI ONS

BY JUDGE HATCHER

Q Ms. Kelly, nmy question is, paragraph 26
of the stipulation refers to the revised tariff to
reflect the new cal cul ati on nethod for budget billing.
Whose testinony contained the description of the new
met hod? And coul d you please explain in sinple terns
how t he new nethod varies fromthe way the existing
tariff requires budget bills to be cal cul ated?

A O course. The testinony -- ny testinony
I's where the budget billing tariff changes are -- are
t al ked about. However, the calculation is not
mentioned in the testinony itself.

In the current tariff, the budget bil
plan calculation is in anobunts equal to 1/12th of the
esti mated annual cost of service to the custoner. And
the difference between the custoner's rate schedul e
billing and their contract billing is accunul ated and
t he outstandi ng balance will be applied to the next
year's budget bill plan.

The new tariff, the calculation is
| ooking at the total charges for the previous
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12 months for that custoner or that |ocation and
dividing that by the total nunber of days in the
billing cycle and then taking the daily average and
multiplying it by 30 to conme up with a new install nent
anmount for budget bill plan.

Q ' mgoing to repeat ny understandi ng of
t hose two nethods and then I'mgoing to have a
foll owup question. The original current budget
billing is taking the total annual anpunt and then
dividing it by 12; is that correct?

A Yes, that is correct.

Q And then the new nethod is going to be
taking the total charges over the year, but then the
difference is going to be in those denom nators.
We're going to divide by the nunber of days in the
billing cycle and then get to our division into
12 nonthly paynents; is that correct? | know that
that woul d not pass a math exam but --

A The first part is correct that we are
taking the total charges for the previous 12 nonths
and dividing that by the total nunber of days in the
billing cycle, but then taking that daily average and
multiplying it by 30 to conme up with the new
i nstal | ment anount .

Q kay. That leads nme to ny foll ow up
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guestion. The second fornula seens, on its face, nore
conplicated. Wat benefits does the change have for
t he Conpany or for custoners?

A In the previous budget bill, it's | ooking
just at a rolling 12 nonths average; whereas, we're
getting a little deeper into the details with the
daily average and taking that by 30.

Q And what benefit does that provide to the
Conpany or to custoners?

A That's a great question. [I'm-- |'mnot
sure that there's really nuch difference either way.

JUDGE HATCHER: Commi ssi oner Col eman.

COMM SSI ONER COLEMAN:  Thank you.

QUESTI ONS
BY COWM SSI ONER COLENAN:

Q Ms. Kelly, so |I'm | eaning sonmewhere
toward the questions that Judge Hatcher had. |I'm
trying to determne if there is no real difference,
what the reason is? There has to be a benefit to
sonebody, because nobody just creates additional nath
for no reason.

Sol'm-- 1| really need sone type of
under st andi ng why going froma general average, take,
you know, the nonthly anmount divided by 12, that
figures -- that's real sinple. So why add a

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N O O A~ W N PP

N DN D DD DNDDNN PP PR R
aa A~ W N P O © 00 N O 0o A W N +— O

Evidentiary Hearing Vol XlI
October 15, 2025 Page 135

conplication? Thank you.

A Thank you for that question, Conmm ssioner
Col eman. The -- currently the way the systemis
configured is the way |'ve described it in the second
scenario where it is already set up to take that
average. So nmking a change to dividing it by
12 woul d be a system change as well.

Q So you're saying that it's always been
set up that way, but you all were doing it
differently?

A It's a new-- in the new CSI system that
Is howit is set up, yes.

Q Okay. New system Ckay. |1've got to
mul |l over that for a while. Thank you.

FURTHER QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER

Q And, Ms. Kelly, just to nail that down a
little bit further, when you say the new system are
we tal king about the Custonmer First systenf

A Yes.

JUDGE HATCHER: Okay. Any further
Comm ssi oner questions? Chair.
FURTHER QUESTI ONS
BY CHAI R HAHN:

Q What are we going to call Custoner First?
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A Oh, I"'msorry. Comm ss- -- Chair Hahn,
was that question for ne?
Q Yeah. \What are we going to call Custoner
First? | think the stipulation says we're not calling
It Custonmer First anynore. Apparently in discussions
fol ks nust have felt like the nane didn't match the
outcones. So what are we calling it?
A That is also a great question, Chair
Hahn. |'mnot sure what we're going to call it. W
are open to discussion. It was requested by parties
to nake that change.
M5. CARTER  Yes. Chair Hahn, |'m not
sure if that was rhetorical or not, but that was a
request from OPC that the -- that the nane be changed.
CHAIR HAHN: I nteresting.
JUDGE HATCHER:  Any further Conm ssioner
questions?
kay. We will go through our
recr oss-exam nation procedures. This is a Conpany
W tness, so we wll go M. Opitz.
MR. OPITZ: No, thank you.
JUDCGE HATCHER: He indicates no
guestions. Staff.
MR. VANDERGRI FF: No, thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER: Consuners Counci |l .
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MR COFFMAN:  Yes. Because |'m confused.
| just would like to ask about the budget billing
again.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR COFFMAN:

Q Coul d you explain to ne -- could you
just -- could you restate what is changing in the
cal cul ation of budget billing again for ne, if you

don't m nd?

A O course. The current tariff cal cul ates
budget bill by taking the custoner's previous
12 nonths and dividing it by 12 to get the average
anount goi ng forward.

The revised tariff would have the budget
bill plan cal cul ated by taking the total nunber of
days in the billing cycle -- sorry, by taking the
total charges for the previous 12 nonths and di vi di ng
that by the total nunber of days in the billing cycle
to get the daily average and then nmultiplying it by
30 to cone up with the new install nent anount.

Q And you think that that will arrive at a

di fferent nunber?

A | do.

Q WIIl it be substantially simlar?

A | think it's on a case-by-case basis on
888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
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the custoner's usage --
Q kay. But it --
A -- and what their -- their pattern is.
Q And -- but it's going to continue to be

based on historical usage, not projection forward; is

that right?
A Correct.
Q kay.
A That is correct.
Q kay. Thank you. That's all | have.
JUDGE HATCHER: And Public Counsel .
MR. WLLIAMS: No questions. Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER: Before we go to redirect,
we have anot her Conm ssioner question. W wll go
back through recross and then we will do the redirect.

Comm ssi oner Col eman.
FURTHER QUESTI ONS
BY COWM SSI ONER COLENAN:

Q Ms. Kelly, do you happen to know how nmany
of your custoners are on budget billing right now?

A | do not have that answer right now,
Comm ssi oner Coleman. | believe that has been
answered possibly in a -- in a data request that |
could get for you, but | do not have that with ne

ri ght now.
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Q Al right. And do you know if
historically those nunbers have been a hi gh percentage
In the past or historically based on what they are
currently and what m ght be projected?

A | do not know that at this tine.

Q Okay. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Okay. We'll go back
t hrough our recross-examnations. M. OQpitz --

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you --

JUDGE HATCHER: -- indicates no
questions. Staff.

MR. VANDERGRI FF: No, thank you, Your
Honor .

JUDGE HATCHER: Consuners Counci | .

MR. COFFMAN. No nore, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Public Counsel .

MR. WLLIAMS: No, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER:  And now redirect.

M5. CARTER  No, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you, Ms. Kelly.
And we really appreciate you taking the itemto call
into the WebEx. | -- | know that the schedul e got
rearranged at the |ast mnute and | appreciate your
pati ence.

THE W TNESS: Absolutely. Thank you.

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS
www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




Evidentiary Hearing Vol XlI
October 15, 2025 Page 140

JUDGE HATCHER: Does the Conpany have any
further witnesses on the stipulation?

M5. CARTER Only if there are additional
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guestions and we can try and find you the right

W t ness.

JUDGE HATCHER: Ckay. We'll go with
t hat .

Staff.

MR. VANDERGRI FF:  Your Honor, we got the
guestions that you sent and we have -- |'Ill just give

you a list. W have KimBolin avail able for your
first question, we have Matthew Young avail able for
your second.

On your third question, you referred to
paragraph 20 and we have Tyrone Thomason avail abl e.
You did not nention paragraph 19 that asked about
external audits, but we got Matthew Young avail abl e
for that. W have Matthew Young avail able for
paragraph 32, that's your fourth question. W have
Tyrone Thomason avail able for your fifth. And for
your sixth question, we have Kinberly Bolin.

Chair Hahn asked two questions. W have

KimBolin avail able for that and we have Caire

Eubanks avail able for Chair -- the Chair's question
for paragraph 36, | believe.
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One nore. We have the Exhibit | tried
to -- to nove in a couple of tinmes and we have Sarah
Lange avail able for that.

JUDGE HATCHER: Only because it's -- only
because it's with the exhibit, let's do that one | ast.
I"'mthinking let's do Ms. Bolin first to give us a
better overview and then we can junp into the details
as we go through. It |looks Iike all of your naned
Staff nmenbers are here.

MR. VANDERGRI FF: | guess I'mgoing to
change it up. I'mgoing to correct ny first
paragraph. 1It's going to be d aire Eubanks.
Apologies. But Claire -- are we ready to call her?

JUDGE HATCHER: Yes. | was waiting for
the coin flinp.

Ms. Eubanks, you've already been sworn
in. That still applies. Please go ahead and have a
seat. We will junp right in with Conmm ssioner
gquesti ons.

Are there any Conm ssioner questions for
Ms. Eubanks?

Ckay. And, M. Vandergriff, would you
rem nd nme which questions |I'm asking of Ms. Eubanks?
It was nunber one and two?

MR. VANDERGRI FF: Just nunber one, Your
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Honor .
JUDGE HATCHER: Just nunber one.
QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER:

Q Ms. Eubanks, paragraph 10 to Exhibit --
cites to Exhibit A the proposed depreciation rates.
Par agraph 10 states that there's good cause to adopt
these rates and accounts in lieu of the current
Commi ssi on- approved FERC US of A

s the anortization of conputer software
that is in conflict -- is it the anortization of
conputer software that is in conflict with the USQCA?
If not, please identify all depreciation rates that
are in conflict with the USQA and why.

A So the -- the Uniform System of Accounts
Is part of Commssion rules. It's 20 CSR 4240-20. 030.
It's the 1992 version of the Uniform System of
Accounts. FERC Order 898 had various changes. And
Ms. Enmery was up earlier, she talked about that it
was -- the -- the account nunbering and new accounts
wer e establ i shed.

So the depreciation rates that are in the
stipulation are reflective of the -- the account --
new account nunbering system So it is not the rates

that are in conflict. It is what we used to call the
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account nunbers. So that includes things |like
conputer hardware and software, but al so sone of the
wi nd and sol ar plant as well.

JUDGE HATCHER: Let ne just check wth
M. Vandergriff real quick. Your -- the other answers
are by other w tnesses?

MR. VANDERGRI FF: They are, but | do want
to clarify one nore. The Chair did have a question
Wi th regards to paragraph 36, and Claire is our
witness for that as well, if she wanted to ask her
reliability question to Caire.

CHAIR HAHN:  Thank you, M. Vandergriff.

QUESTI ONS
BY CHAI R HAHN:

Q Ms. Eubanks, would you |ike to expand on
any inprovenents that the Staff would like to see in
regard to reliability?

A So this stipulation provision conmes from
nmy -- | believe ny surrebuttal testinony. | talked
about rebut -- reliability in ny rebuttal testinony,
and OPC had sone concerns about sone of the projects
and also the reliability experience of custoners.

So we don't have specific itens that
we're asking to be ordered. In this case the

provision is a collaboration between Staff and OPC to
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toe address what | saw were supported by reliability
nmetrics that are reported to the Comm ssion, which
related to the duration of outages and al so

wor st-performng circuits.

The -- the Conpany is already required in
their reliability reporting to address
wor st-performng circuits and propose inprovenents.

So it's -- it's really just bringing Staff and OPC
into that discussion is the intention.
Q Thank you. Appreciate that.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you, M. Eubanks.
| appreciate you being here again today.

Go ahead and call your next wtness.

You are excused fromthe w tness stand.

THE WTNESS: Do we have any questions
from other parties?

MR WLLIAMS: You want nme to grill you
for a while, Caire?

THE WTNESS: No, just --

JUDGE HATCHER: My apol ogies. W were
m Xi ng up everything today and |'mreally trying
sonme -- sone interesting shortcuts apparently.

We have recross-exam nation to go through
for all the parties. M apologies. M apologies for
forgetting, not for the questions.
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Let's see. This is a Staff w tness.
First we go to M. Opitz.

MR. OPITZ: No, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Consuners Counci l .

MR. COFFMAN: No questi ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: Enpire.

M5. CARTER  No, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Public Counsel .

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR- WLLI AVE:

Q One or two, | think. On The depreciation
rates in the stipulation and agreenent, Public Counsel
did not object to the entirety of those depreciation
rates. |s that not correct?
| don't believe so.

You don't bel- --
| - -
Q Did Public Counsel object to all the

> o >

depreciation rates or only a part of thenf

A Only a part of themis ny understandi ng
fromthe position statenent.

Q And Public Counsel has not objected to
adopting the FERC 898 accounting -- USQOA accounti ng
br eak- out as opposed to what's required under the

current Comm ssion rule, correct?
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A Yes, that's ny understandi ng.
Q No further questions.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

And that goes to redirect.

MR. VANDERGRI FF:  No redirect, Your
Honor .

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

And now.

THE W TNESS: Thank you.

MR. VANDERGRI FF: Qur next witness is
M. Matthew Young.

JUDGE HATCHER: Are we purposefully
keeping Ms. Bolin waiting?

COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  She can't wait.

JUDGE HATCHER: Cone on down. You've
al ready been sworn. Please join our party. Thank
you, M. Young.

Are there any Conm ssioner questions for
M. Young? And I'mgoing to | ook neaningfully at
M. Vandergriff. Wat questions on the list?

MR. VANDERGRI FF: So paragraph two is for
tax equity distribution. Nunmber two in paragraph 16.

JUDGE HATCHER  Thank you.

MATTHEW YOUNG

havi ng been previously sworn, testified as foll ows:
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QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER:
Q M. Young, paragraph 16 refers to tax

equity distribution. Can Staff provide nore detail

about what this paragraph pertains to?

A | think there's been a -- sone
m scommuni cation. |'mgoing to defer that paragraph
to -- to Ms. Bolin. | can -- | can speak to the
nunber three and four on -- on the list of Conm ssion
guesti ons.

Q Wll, let's -- let's do three and four.
| apol ogi ze.

MR. VANDERGRI FF:  And | apol ogi ze too.
But just to reiterate, we had question 19 for external
audits. You -- you didn't ask for that one, but you
did ask for 20. So if you -- if you're asking about
audits, that mght be there as well.

JUDGE HATCHER: 1'Il see if anyone
e-mails ne.
BY JUDGE HATCHER

Q Let's nove to three and four, M. Young.

Nunber three says: Paragraph 20 refers to ethics and
capitalization internal audits. Can Staff provide
nore detail of what these audits are intended to

provi de and the specific problens they address?
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A Sure. | tried nmy best to outline the
current events and -- on pages 24 through 31 of ny
direct testinony. And I'd also like to note that in
rebuttal testinony, M. WIlson fromEnpire agreed with
the -- with the recommendati ons of that part of ny
di rect.

The audits were brought about | think for
two reasons. The first reason were a response to
custoner filings, custoner coments fromfornmer Enpire
enpl oyees. My inpression is that these enpl oyees
were -- were |long tenured, nost of themvery likely
goi ng back before Al gonquin acquired Enpire in 2017.

These custoner conments generally accused
Enpire of basically capitalizing too nuch. They
accused themof -- of diverting projects from-- from
mai nt enance to capital projects by replacing perfectly
good equi pnent or -- or doing sone creative accounting
to -- to inflate the -- the anount of capital spending
they could conme up wth.

And there al so were sone concerns with
how they interacted with the third-party contractors
fromboth in the conpetitive bid process and -- and
the gratuities accepted by enpl oyees.

So -- so | asked for all of Enpire's

policies in response to the -- the custoners' input.
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| -- 1 didn't want to do nothing with the infornmation
they provided. And | didn't find any evidence of
| npropriety, okay?

But the internal audits | think -- |
woul d hope they would franme up a re-eval uati on of how
Enpire controls its spending and ensures it's acting
in the ratepayer's interest on a general and -- and
specifically the -- the itens nentioned in those --

t hose custoner coments.

And the second part of -- of what is
driving this audit is sone things that -- that we cane
across -- we, as the auditors of the Staff Comm ssion,
cane across during the audit. Were -- where we found
that Enpire was capitalizing sonme -- sone cost itens
t hat had questionable relationship to construction.

So hopefully those -- those overhead-type
of costs that are -- that are ending up in plant
accounts wll be included in what the Internal Audit
Depart nent exam nes.

Q M. Vandergriff brought up externa
audits in paragraph 19 and ny question was on
paragraph 20, internal audits. Am|l correct in
concluding that the "internal" designation indicates
that this will be an audit done by Liberty personnel?

A Exactly, yes.
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Q Let's nove on to question four on that
list that we e-mailed. Paragraph 23 refers to the
di sconti nuance of the excess EADI T tracker. Was this
tracker specifically for unprotected property or also
for protected property?

A It is ny understanding it was -- it is
for both protected and unprotected. And | can cite to
t he Comm ssion's order approving the stipulation and
agreenents they issued in ER-2021-0312.

That order approved the Non-unani nous
Partial Stipulation and Agreenent in that case, which
cont ai ned paragraph six titled EADI T tracker.

Okay. That paragraph references a
tracker that's going to capture the difference between
protected EADIT return to custoners as part of the
revenue requirenent and the actual anortization
recorded by Enpire using ARAM

But it also nentions a three-year
anortization period for non-stub period, unprotected
EADI T bal ances. So that -- that stipulation the
Conmm ssi on approved addresses protected and
unpr ot ect ed.

JUDGE HATCHER: M. Vandergriff, was
that -- those are the questions. Thank you.

Any further Conm ssioner questions for
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M. Young before | start the recross exam nation?
Heari ng none, we'll go to
recross-examnation. This is a Staff wtness. W

start wth M. Opitz, who indicates no questions.
Consuners Council indicates no questions. Enpire
I ndi cates no questions. Public Counsel.
MR. WLLIAMS: No questions.
JUDGE HATCHER: And redirect by Staff.
MR. VANDERGRI FF:  No redirect, Your

Honor .

JUDGE HATCHER:  Thank you.

Thank you for the third tine today,
M. Young. | appreciate you being here.

MR. VANDERGRI FF: W'l | stop hiding
Ms. Bolin. Please take the stand.

JUDGE HATCHER: Ms. Bolin, you' ve al ready
been sworn in in this case.

THE WTNESS: Yes. Yes, | have.

JUDGE HATCHER: That still applies.
Let's junp right in with Comm ssioner questions on
question nunber --

VMR. VANDERCGRI FF:  Two and si Xx.

KI MBERLY BQOLI N,

havi ng been previously sworn, testified as foll ows:

QUESTI ONS
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BY JUDGE HATCHER

Q "' m going to be asking about nunber two
and six. Question nunber two on the sheet |
distributed to all the parties. Paragraph 16 refers
to tax equity distribution. Can Staff provide nore
detail about what this paragraph pertains to?

A Yes. This is wth the tax equity
partnership on the wind farms. There are cash
distributions that Enpire is sweeping before they
start doing the cash distributions to the tax equity
partners.

And we had a little confusion on exactly
how t he rate-maki ng of those cash distributions are
going to work in the future. So |I think we just need
nore tinme and nore understanding on this and that's
what the stipulation is getting to. It has no current
| npact on the revenue requirenent.

Q So if there isn't an agreenent by the
time these paynents start, there will be another case
filing or --

A Possi bl y.

Q -- deal with it down the road?

A | think -- I think we can figure the --
It just needs -- we need nore tinme to understand what

I S going on here.
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Q kay. | understand. Thank you.

A And | think we need nore detail.

Q And ny ot her question was nunber si X.
There is no exhibit that includes the agreed plant and
accunul ated depreciation reserve bal ances as of the
true-up date, March 31st, 2025. Since there were
I ssues related to both plant and reserve, wll there
be an exhibit that quantifies the plant and reserve
bal ances as of the true-up date?

A No, there was not. And there is not a
need for one with the settlenent. 1'd like to point
out we do have anortization bal ances attached as a
schedul e and those woul d be needed in the future.

Q Ckay. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: 1'Il open that back up to
ot her Comm ssi oner questions. Chair Hahn.
QUESTI ONS
BY CHAI R HAHN:

Q Good afternoon, Ms. Bolin.

A Good aft ernoon.

Q Can you just give ne a high |level --
you' ve been involved in this case, previous Liberty
cases and also you're involved in the investigation
case. Fromyour view, taking into account the billing
consi derations, do you think that this stipul ation

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS

www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N O O A~ W N PP

N DN D DD DNDDNN PP PR R
aa A~ W N P O © 00 N O 0o A W N +— O

Evidentiary Hearing Vol XlI
October 15, 2025 Page 154

agreenent results in just and reasonabl e rates?

A Yes, | do. Staff's case, with all of our
di sal | owances for Customer First matters and custoner
service matters was 128, alnost 129 mllion dollars.
This settlenent is 97 mllion. W still have our
I nvesti gation going where we can bring up nore matters
that need to be brought before the Conmm ssion on
custoner service so we can still handle that in the
| nvesti gati on.

Q Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Any further Conm ssioner
questions for Ms. Bolin?

Heari ng none, we will go back to our
recross-examnation. This is a Staff wtness. MCG
I ndi cates no questions. Consuners Council indicates
no questi ons.

MR. COFFMAN. No, | -- | do.

JUDGE HATCHER: Onh, I'msorry. Consuner
Counci |, go ahead.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR COFFNMAN:
Q And -- and this is a broad question, but
| hope it will be allowed since the Chair did ask
about kind of the high |evel of this Non-Unani nous

Stipulation, which is now a Joint Position Statenent
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of the signatories.

And ny main focus is on the Custoner
First regulatory asset. And if you could just help ne
understand how this works nmechanically. There is --
the -- the -- the first paragraph indicates that
the -- 97 mllion dollar revenue requirenent
recomendati on does not include Custoner First. That
there is -- it's recognized that that's not in the
97 mllion.

And then paragraph 7 describes a Custoner
First regulatory asset, which would then still be
possible for the utility to recover if they net
certain performance netrics on a nonthly basis,
correct?

A That is correct.

Q And so even though it's not included in
the 97 mllion, there's the potential for this utility
to have in a regulatory asset $1,145,863 in each nonth
that they neet these netrics.

A There is. And that would total to
thirteen-thousand seventy-hundred fifty-thousand [as
said] dollars a year.

Q kay.

A Which still wouldn't get you to our 129.

Q kay. So as -- as you interpret
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par agr aph seven, what you're reconmending to the
Commi ssion is that this regulatory asset not ever be
nore than 13 mllion?

A That is correct. Well --

Q So it doesn't roll over and -- like if it
went on for two years?

A If it went on for two years. But our
anounts are annual in- -- anmounts that get -- like the
128 mllion would be the increase so you woul d see the
revenues increase by 128 mllion doll ars.

Q Ckay. Ckay. So it's a rate-base anount,
not a revenue requirement anount?

A This would be included in rate base,
that's correct.

Q kay. And so then the rate -- so what --
and then the -- so what -- how high could this
regul atory asset growto be if -- if let's just say
hypothetically the utility net the performance netrics
in 24 of the nonths between now and the end of this
peri od?

A If they met themfor 24 nonths --

Q Uh- huh.

A -- it would be roughly 27 mllion
dol | ars.

Q kay. And then that 27 mllion dollars
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woul d then be reviewed by the Conm ssion in another
case two or three years from now?

A Wenever they cone back in. They cannot
cone in any sooner -- cannot file any sooner than two
years, 24 nonths.

Q But that -- yeah. That hypothetica
amount, which could be 24 mllion or sonewhere in that
range, would be in addition to the 97 mllion dollars
inthis --

A It would be --

Q -- non-unani nobus - -

A -- in the next rate case.

Q kay. But it could --

A It would recover -- the recovery would be
| ooked at in the next rate case.

Q And how soon coul d that anount be
addressed by the Conmi ssion given the year one, year
two, year three? Wuld it -- would it necessarily be
after the year three, 97 -- after -- after the revenue
requi rement had gone up 97 mllion or could it occur
before that?

A No, they cannot cone in and file -- they
cannot file a rate case for 24 nonths after the
effective date of February 1st in this case. So a
rate case takes 11 nonths.
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Q Right. Right. And so 24 -- 24 nonths
fromthe Report and Order in this case, your
recomendati on woul d have the revenue requirenent be
at 97 mllion. That would be the year three -- year
three would be 24 nonths after the ord- -- the
effective dates in this case --

A Correct.

Q -- is that right?

A Yes.

Q kay. And would -- would there be any
carrying costs on this regulatory asset?

A That is not addressed in this paragraph.
The paragraph says the anounts are subject to review
and recovery in a future rate case.

Q So the -- and this is a separate
regul atory asset fromthe deferred revenue regul atory
asset, correct?

A That is correct.

Q So that -- that's in paragraph eight and
that refers to the carrying cost over the -- the
phase-in, the three different years; year one, year
two, year three?

A That is correct. That's that -- that
asset there.

Q And that specifically, in your
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recomrendati on, would have a carrying cost of zero
percent ?

A That is correct.
Q But there -- but there is no such
provi sion in paragraph seven?
A That is correct.
Q So this -- and it -- it won't be
24 mllion, but we're -- for purposes of our
hypot hetical, it's another -- it's another big chunk
of change comng. And it -- your -- you would say
that the Commi ssion could consider carrying costs on
t hat .
A They could. But it is not spelled out
here. The --
Q Do you have an opi ni on about whet her that
woul d be reasonabl e or not?
A | would not think carrying costs would be
appropriate on that.
Q Okay. And then one nore question.
These -- the performance netrics are not spelled out
in the stipulation, which is now your recommendati on.
Is -- does Staff have an idea of what it would accept
for performance nmetrics or is that just still to be
det er m ned?
A | don't know that we have a fornal
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definition of netrics. |If you would want nore
I nformation on netrics, Tyrone Thomason woul d be
good -- best witness to approach on that.

Q kay. So that is -- and what happens if
the -- the parties do not agree on performance netrics
by the tine that the Comm ssion would then be
reviewing this? 1In other word -- well, when woul d
the -- when would there have to be agreenent on the
performance netrics? That would have to be right at
the end of this case, wouldn't it, because --

A W -- the -- the stipulation says that
the parties wll confer on the appropriate and
reasonabl e, achi evable, nonthly, nornmalized
performance netrics and targets in a separate
I nvestigation and reach agreenent by May 31st.

Q And what happens if there is not an
agreenent by May 31st?

A Then it would go in front of the
Comm ssion to nmake that determ nation.

Q That's what | thought. | just wasn't
clear. So then that would be -- there would need to
be -- soif -- if there is no agreenent, you would
expect then a filing at the Comm ssion to have the
Comm ssi on deci de what --

A. Yes.
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Q -- those performance netrics are?
And when woul d that -- when would there

need to be a decision on that --

A It is not spelled on --

Q -- for this to work?

A It's not spelled out in this stipulation.

Q Wul d that need to be before May 31st in
order for the -- for paragraph seven to be effective?

A |"mnot sure that it would need to be.
This -- the agreenent says that they will be reached
by May 31st.

Q Wuld it be your opinion that paragraph

seven could not take place until there was an

agreenent or a determ nation about the performance

metrics?

A That is ny understandi ng.

Q kay. Al right. That hel ps. Thank
you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. Coff man.
It goes to Enpire.
M5. CARTER  Thank you.
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. CARTER
Q Ms. Bolin, M. Coffrman said there would

be a big chunk of change com ng from paragraph seven.
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Just -- just to be clear, there would be nothing put
into that regul atory asset unless -- unless and until
there are agreed-upon performance netrics and the
Conpany neets those performance netrics, correct?

A That is correct.

Q And there -- that's done on a
nont h- by- nont h basis, correct?

A Yes. You can neet it one nonth and then
the following nonth not neet it.

Q So nothing is put into that regul atory
asset unless the Conpany is showmng that it is -- | --
"Il let you use your words instead of ne trying to
put the words in your nouth. But what woul d the
Conpany have to be doing in order for noney to be put
into that regul atory asset?

A They woul d have to neet the netrics
spel |l ed out.

Q And what woul d those netrics be show ng?

A They woul d probably be showing billing
accuracy, tineliness, custonmer service. |If you want
nore detail, you'd probably need to talk to Tyrone
Thomason.

Q Thank you. And -- and the paragraph six
that you were referencing earlier in response to a

guestion says, as you nentioned, that we'd agree by
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May 31st, 2026. So they're not specified yet, but the
performance netrics should be related to billing
accuracy, billing tineliness, nunber of estimted
bills, call center representatives, and custoner
experience index, correct?

A That is what the stipulation states.
Q Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.
And M. WIIians.
MR WLLIAMS: Thank you.
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR W LLI AMVS:
Q Staff hasn't conpleted its investigation
into the billing issues yet, has it?
A No, we have not.
Q And woul dn't that have sonething to do
with performance netrics?
A That woul d probably help on our per- --
hel p determ ne the performance netrics.
Q And | guess |I'll re-tread sone ground.
That's really just an agreenent to agree to sonething
in the future, is it not?
A It is. It said we would have -- reach an
agreenent by May 31st.
Q And your stipulation and agreenent at
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this time is positions of the parties who signed onto
It, isit not?

A Yes.

Q So except for specific issues that are
called out in that agreenent, the parties are not --
the parties to that stipulation are not in agreenent
to those issues that are not specified, correct?

A W are not in agreenent yet as to the
cust oner performance netrics.

Q Well, there's nore than that, isn't it?
Are you in agreenent on return on equity? Are you in
agreenent as to capital structure? Are you in
agreenent as to --

A It is a black-box settlenent and --

Q But the Comm ssion --

A -- we agreed to a 97 mllion dollar
| ncr ease.

Q But the Comm ssion is going to have to
decide all those issues to cone up with a revenue
requirenent if it decides not to take Public Counsel's
first position of no increase until Liberty
straightens out its internal issues and billing
| ssues, correct?

A The Comm ssion can decide that the

stipulation is prudent --
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Q VWll, howcan it --

A -- and reasonabl e.

Q How can it just say, "Hey, 97 mllion,
all of these things are bl ack-boxed"? Doesn't it need
to support what it's saying the revenue requirenent
shoul d be?

MR. VANDERGRI FF:  Your Honor, we're going
to object. Opposing counsel is try to draw a | egal
concl usion fromour wtness.

JUDGE HATCHER:  Overrul ed.

THE WTNESS: W put this on -- this is
our position now, the 97 mllion dollars.

BY MR- WLLI AVE:

Q But your evidence doesn't support it,
does it?

A Qur evidence supports a 128 mllion
dol l ar case, our original filing.

Q So your evidence supports nore than a
97 mllion?

A That's why we believe this is a
reasonabl e settl enent.

Q But if the Comm ssion's going to arrive
at a 97, it needs to |l ook at the evidence and conme up
wth a 97 dollar -- | nean mllion dollar anount,
correct?
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A | think these issues are being briefed in
this case.

Q "' mjust making a point that the
Comm ssion can't just adopt this -- these positions.
That it actually is going to have to go through and
decide the issues in this case. You agree with that?

A | believe the Comm ssion could agree that
our Non-Unani nous Stipulation is warranted here.

MR WLLIAMS: Well, | just want to nake
a point that the Commssion's free to do whatever the
evidence -- the [imts on what the Conm ssion can do
in this case is driven by the evidence in front of it
and it's a wide range. 1'll leave it at that. Thank
you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Redirect.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR VANDERGRI FF:

Q Good afternoon, Ms. Bolin.

A Good afternoon.

Q You were asked questions about the
metrics. Do you have an idea about which parties
woul d be included in agreeing to any such netrics for
the regul atory assets?

A Per the stipulation, it's the -- it says

the parties. |I'massumng it would include OPC
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Q And wth that, had Enpire not cone to an
agreenent with those netrics, would it be able to
collect any of its deferred assets?

A Coul d you repeat the question?

Q Wuld -- if we do not cone to an
agreenent, would Enpire be allowed to defer any of its
Custoner First assets?

A No.

Q You were asked about the investigation.
When is our report for the investigation expected to
concl ude right now?

A | believe it's the end of the year,
Decenber 31st possibly.

Q And May 31st. How nuch tinme would it
give the parties to cone to an agreenent on the
metrics?

A Fi ve nont hs.

Q You think that's a reasonabl e anmount of
time?

A | hope.

Q Al right. Had Enpire not had the issues
It had experienced at the inplenentation of Custoner
First, would Staff have recomrended i ncl udi ng Custoner
First rates in this case?

A Coul d you repeat that question?
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Q Had Enpire not had the issues it
experienced at the inplenentation of the Custoner
First, would Staff have recomended incl udi ng Custoner
First in rates for this case?

A Yes.

Q Does the stipulation require Enpire to
meet certain netrics prior to booking returns
associated with Customer First to a deferral --
deferred asset?

A If they neet the netrics, yes.

Q No further questions.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, Counsel .

Thank you Ms. Bolin. You are excused
fromour wtness stand.

Counsel, go ahead and call your next
W t ness.

MR. VANDERGRI FF:  Tyrone Thomason.

JUDGE HATCHER: M. Thomason, wel cone
back. Go ahead and take a seat. You were sworn in
yesterday. That still applies.

W will junp right in with Conm ssioner
guestions. Are there any Comm ssi oner questions for
M. Thomason? Chair Hahn.

CHARLES TYRONE THOVASON,
havi ng been previously sworn, testified as foll ows:
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QUESTI ONS
BY CHAI R HAHN:

Q M. Thomason, yesterday | was absent in
your -- when you testified before the Conm ssion. And
| think you may have spoken about how t he Conpany did
or did not contact you when they first had issues with
Custoner First. Can you recall that testinony?

A Yes, | recall that.

Q And did you, in fact -- or who fromthe
Staff did reach out to Liberty to discuss issues with
Custoner First?

A For the initial neeting that took place
I n August of 2024, it was the Consuner Services
Departnent that reached out.

Q kay. And did you do that via phone call
or how did you contact them about issues that the
Cust oner Servi ce Experience Departnent had?

A It was Consuner Services, not Custoner
Experi ence.

Q Ch, Consuner Services.

A Yes. Consuner Services, if | recal
correctly, reached out by e-nmail to set up a neeting.

Q kay. So it was our Staff who actually
reached out to Liberty?

A. Yes.

888-893-3767 Lexitas operates in all 50 states and is licensed where required. LEXITAS

www.lexitaslegal.com Nevada Registration #116F - California Firm Registration #179




© 00 N O O A~ W N PP

N DN D DD DNDDNN PP PR R
aa A~ W N P O © 00 N O 0o A W N +— O

Evidentiary Hearing Vol XlI
October 15, 2025 Page 170

Q kay. In the nonthly neetings, what was
acconplished in those neetings?

A Usual Iy the Conpany cane with a set of,
| i ke, performance netrics showng like this is how
many del ayed bills they've had, this is their progress
I n reduci ng nunber of billing exceptions, this is how
many custoners haven't received bills.

And al so they woul d bring updates on any
| ssues that they discussed -- they m ght have brought
up in previous neetings to discuss progress in
resol ving those, and al so new i ssues that m ght have
cone up since then, either issues that they bring to
us voluntarily or that we hear from custoners and
contact themin ad- -- in advance and tell them "Hey,
this is sonmething that you need to | ook into."

Q kay. Over the course of working wth
Li berty in those nonthly neetings, did you see
progress toward sol ving any of those issues or was it
kind of a m xed bag?

A It depends on the issue. For a |ot of
the issues that cane up, there was progress resolving
them |In other cases, | would say that there would be
progress for a coupl e nonths.

For exanpl e, delayed bills, for exanple,

there would be progress in reducing that nunber for a
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coupl e nonths, and then next nonth you m ght get a
huge spi ke. And then back to reducing them again for
the following nonth. It really depends on the issue.

Q Ckay. Thank you. Appreciate that. |
know this is supposed to not be on -- this is supposed
to be on the stipulation so thanks for hel pi ng ne out.

A No problem

JUDGE HATCHER: Comm ssi oner Kol kneyer.
COW SSI ONER KOLKMEYER:  Thank you,
Judge.
QUESTI ONS
BY COW SSI ONER KOLKNMVEYER:

Q VWhat was that date again that Staff
contacted Liberty?

A | don't have the date that we first
reached out to Liberty, but | know that the -- the
neeting that canme out fromthat contact was in August
of 2024.

Q So that really started with the water
case.

A | don't believe that neeting was tied
directly to the water case. Consuner Services had
been receiving phone calls from Liberty custoners |
think across all utilities about various issues.

Q kay. But the water case hadn't been
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resolved at that tine?

A Not at that tine.

Q | don't -- yeah. Ckay. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. any ot her
Comm ssi oner questions for M. Thomason?

kay. Thank you, M. Thomason. We wil|
go through our --

MR. JOHNSON: | believe M. Thomason may
be able to answer the question related to the budget
bill change.

MR. VANDERGRI FF: That was question five,
par agr aph 26.

QUESTI ONS
BY JUDGE HATCHER:

Q Excell ent. The Bench has a questi on.
Paragraph 26 refers to the revised tariff to reflect
t he new cal cul ati on nethod for budget billing. Wose
testinony contains a description of the new nethod,
and woul d you be able to explain in sinple terns how
the new nethod varies fromthe existing one?

A Yes, | can. You can find that in ny
testinony. M direct testinony pages 33 through 35 is
where | discuss budget billing.

To answer the second part of the

guestion, the original budget billing calculation is
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essentially you take the last -- the charges for the

| ast 12 nonths and then you divide it by 12. And that
Is also the calculation nethod that is stipulated in
their tariff.

The new cal cul ation nethod i s where you
t ake those -- that same 12 nonths, sanme -- the sane
charges, you divide that by the nunber of days in the
billing periods for each of those 12 bills and then
you nmultiply it by 30. And if you'd like an exanple
of that calculation, you can find it on page 34 of ny
t esti nony.

And it also calculates it out with an
exanpl e showing if you do the two cal cul ati on net hods,
there is a difference.

And | will also add the reason why | put
this in testinony to begin with is because when the
Conpany switched to SAP, it changed their cal cul ati on
nmet hod for budget billing, which neans that their
current nethod is not inline with their tariff. So
ny intention when I -- when | nade the recomendati on,
was to bring the Conpany back in conpliance with its
tariff.

Q Thank you. | appreciate that.

JUDGE HATCHER: Okay. Any further

guestions from Conmm ssi oners?
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COW SSI ONER COLEMAN:  Yes.
JUDGE HATCHER:  Commi ssi oner Col eman.
COW SSI ONER COLEMAN:  Thank you.
QUESTI ONS
BY COWM SSI ONER COLEMAN:

Q M. Thomason, hi. How are you today?

A Pretty good. Thank you.

Q Good. Were you able to hear Chair Hahn
and | asking questions -- or maybe it was Comm ssi oner
Kol kneyer and I, | can't renenber anynore -- questions

about budget billing?

And ny main interest is, do you have any
| dea why the change was nade? | believe Ms. Kelly
noted that it had to do with the new system which
we're | ooking for the change of nane and all that good
stuff. But the reason for it. Because |I'mtrying to
figure out who it benefits.

A My understanding is just that -- that's
j ust how SAP does the cal culation. Wen the Conpany
switched to SAP, | don't think it was even aware that
t he cal cul ati on nmet hod would be different.

Q So are you saying that it really doesn't

matter which systemis used?

A Wi ch?
Q Add nmath versus new nat h.
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A Oh, | don't have an issue with either
cal culation nethod. M nmain concern is that the new
calculation nethod is not inline with the tariff.

Q Al right. And that's an inportant
I ssue. Thank you very nuch.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. And any --
any question -- further questions from Conm ssi oners?

Hearing none, we wll go back to our
recross-examnation. For a Staff witness, we go first
to M. OQpitz. Indicates no questions. Consuners
Counci | .

MR. COFFMAN:  Yes.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR COFFNMAN:

Q Good afternoon, M. Thonason.

A Good afternoon.

Q And this may be repeating testinony from
yesterday, but with regard to the Staff investigation
of the -- the billing problens, is it fair to say that
the delay in getting a rep- -- a Staff report from
that investigation is related to the fact that Staff
has continued to find new issues and so the scope of
that investigation has gotten bigger and nore
conpl i cated?

A That is one of the reasons, yes.
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Q kay. Do you believe that -- and |
bel i eve you said yesterday that you were expecting
that that report could still be done by the end of
this year, so sonetine in Decenber perhaps?

A Yes, that is our intention.

Q kay. And at that point is -- is that
why there isn't an agreenent on performance netrics
yet, because Staff wants to have a conprehensive
report before they negotiate exactly what the
performance netrics are as it relates to the
Non- unani nous Stip recomendati on?

A | don't believe that was a -- one of the
reasons, but that is -- that would be a consideration,
the investigation.

Q Do you -- do you -- do you feel right now
that at | east the scope of the investigation is clear
to you? Do you believe that you have now i ncl uded
everything that you think is relevant to that
I nvestigation in the -- in the investigation that
you're doing? O are you worried that there m ght
still be new issues that are uncovered?

A | don't know if | can answer that we have
uncovered every single possible issue, but | think we
have a pretty good grasp of the -- the main issues,

yes.
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Q kay. And are -- and you have confidence

that the parties can reach agreenent on those
performance netrics in the tinme recommended?
A Yes, | think so.
Q kay. Al right. That's all | have.
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. And Enpire.
M5. CARTER  Thanks, Judge.
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY M. CARTER

Q M. Thomason, | have just a few questions

for you. There have been quite a few questions to you

both the first tinme you were on the stand and now
t oday about the nonthly neetings that started up in
August of 2024.

Prior to that and ongoi ng before that,
were there also standing quarterly neetings between
Staff, OPC, and Liberty to discuss custoner service
| ssues?

A "Il have to -- for the first part of
your question, the nonthly neetings did not start in
August of 2024. They did not start until February
2025. Sorry, could you repeat the question?

Q And I'msorry. | was just going off of
the -- | wote down August of '24 from your answer

earlier. | apologize if | got that wong, that that
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was when the neetings specifically related to Custoner
First started. So | wll rephrase that question.

You had nentioned neetings specific to
Custoner First starting at sone point based on Staff
contacting the Conpany. So --

A Yes.

Q -- |I"m aski ng separate fromthose, there
were al so standi ng customer service neetings that had
al ready been going on quarterly | believe at that tine
between Staff, OPC, and Liberty; is that correct?

A That is correct.

Q Thank you. | just wanted to nake sure we
were clear that those were two -- two separate things.

And then al so you had questions about the
I nvestigation and the report having not been filed yet
fromStaff in the investigation case. Those two cases
aren't necessarily tied together, our rate case here
and that investigation. They don't have to be tined
t oget her, do they?

A No, not necessarily.

Q And -- and the primary reason | believe
Staff made a filing, the -- the reason for asking for
a delay -- and | don't consider it a delay, but for --
for the date that you gave that Staff provided for

when you woul d file that report, that was Staff's
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wor kl oad, correct, was listed first?

A That was one of the reasons, yes.

Q And then lastly, on the budget billing, I
just wanted to make sure. D d you have Conmm ssi oner
Col eman t he nunber of budget billing accounts?

A No, |I did not.

Q Ckay. That is in your testinony,
correct?

A Yes, it is.

Q | just want to nake sure she got her
answer on that.

A On page 35 of ny testinony | say -- on ny
direct testinony | say that Enpire has 17,751
custoners participating in budget billing as of
May 15th of 2025.

Q And this may not be your area, so pl ease
feel free to tell ne that as the answer. But would
you agree with ne that as far as the old nmath/ new
math, that this -- this new math should result in a
slightly nore accurate calculation since it digs in a
littl e deeper and -- and goes -- does the daily
average instead of just a rolling nonthly average?

A Accurate to what shoul d be a budget
billing anount? | think that's kind of -- yeah, |I'd

defer that question.
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Q kay. Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER: Public Counsel .
MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you.
RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR W LLI AMS:

Q Good afternoon, M. Thonason.
A Good aft ernoon.
Q Chair Hahn asked you about Custoner First

and sone events that occurred, but |I didn't hear
anything -- or very nuch about the timng so | want to
try to get into that a bit.
| believe you said that -- or testified

that Staff | earned about Custoner First issues through
the Staff Custonmer Experience group; is that correct?

A Consuner Servi ces Departnent.

Q kay. And about what tinme frame was
that, do you know?

A | don't recall when the e-mail started
going around. | recall that the first neeting that
was set up between Consuner Services Custoner

Experience and the Conpany was in August of 2024.

Q Well, | heard the August 2024 date. And
we had testinony earlier that Custonmer First went |ive
in April | believe 8th of 2024. So we kind of have
bookends.
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Do you have any sense of when in between
those two dates Staff |learned from-- | guess from
I nput from custoners about the Custonmer First issues
at Liberty?

A | know that the first indication for ny
departnment was Consuner Services. There was also --
because of the increase in informal conplaints. |
don't have a just specific date beyond that.

And | should also add that at that tine,
t he nunber of issues was snmall conpared to where we're
at now.

Q Well, would that have been in the sunmer
of 20247

A Yes, |ate sunmmer.

Q You didn't have sonebody from Li berty
saying, "Hey, we're having trouble with our custoner
service issues” in |like May of 2024? | nmean with our
Custoner First, I'msorry.

A No. Pa- -- as part of the variance cases
for the Custonmer First inplenentation, the Conpany was
required to file a variance report detailing how the
conversi on went.

They filed an interimreport in -- let ne
get the nonth real quick. On -- on June 7th they

filed an interimreport where it did not really
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address -- discuss any of the issues really. You
can -- | discussed that a little bit on page four of
nmy direct testinony.

And then they filed the -- the full
report on August 6th, which had nore issues.

Q You testified about having quarterly
neetings with Liberty or -- yeah, | think they were
neetings; is that --

A Yes.

Q -- correct? About --

A That's correct.

Q -- custoner service?

When were those ongoi ng?

A They predate ny starting at the
Commi ssion. | know they are quarterly neetings
stipulated by | believe a rate case, but |I don't --
or -- or the nerger, but | don't have the case that
that was stipulated in in front of ne.

Q So quarterly are -- is it like March you
nmeet and then June and --

A Ri ght .

Q -- so forth? Septenber and Decenber?

Was Custoner First brought up in any of
those quarterly neetings; and if so, when first, to

your know edge?
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A Prior to or subsequent the
I npl enment ati on? Because they nentioned in quarterly
neetings before the inplenentation that they were
| npl enenting Custoner First. But the actual -- if
you' re tal ki ng about specific issues com ng out of
Custonmer First, | think the first quarterly neeting
where that was di scussed woul d have been in Septenber
of 2024.

Q Do you know why those quarterly neetings
are hel d?

A Not off the top of ny head. | know we
nmeet with nost of the major utilities, just discuss
custoner service issues either nonthly or quarterly
dependi ng on the conpany.

Q Thank you. Appreciate your testinony.

A Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. WIIians.
And redirect.
MR. VANDERGRI FF: No questions, Your
Honor .
JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. M. Thomason,
appreci ate you being here again today.
THE W TNESS: Thank you.
JUDGE HATCHER: You're excused from our
W t ness st and.
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Staff, any further w tnesses?

MR. VANDERGRI FF:  Sarah Lange.

JUDGE HATCHER. Has everybody gotten a
copy of 180 -- proposed Exhibit 1087

MR. VANDERGRI FF: Perm ssion to approach.

(Wtness sworn.)

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. Pl ease go
ahead and have a seat and spell your nanme for our
court reporter, please.

THE W TNESS: Sarah Lange, S-a-r-a-h
L-a-n-g-e.

JUDGE HATCHER: And are there any
Commi ssi oner questions for Ms. Lange? Chair Hahn.

SARAH LANCE,

havi ng been first duly sworn, testified as foll ows:

QUESTI ONS
BY CHAI R HAHN:
Q Good afternoon, Ms. Lange.
A Good afternoon.
Q Appreciate the exhibit. In OPC s opening

statenents they showed a video. And | think that one
of the folks testifying in the |ocal public hearings
had hi ghlighted that Wiite Ri ver Co-op was cheaper

t han what was going to be proposed through the Liberty

rate case. And | renmenber wondering about the per
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kil owatt hour charge, but al so then about the fixed
cust oner charge.

Can you -- it looks like -- | see you
have White River on here. Can you talk about the per
kil owatt hour charge under the new Liberty rates
conpared to the Wiite River charge and then al so the
fi xed charge?

A Yes. So Wiite R ver, according to their
website -- which | rely on for this sort of thing
where they have it and | don't have to nake a phone
call -- has a custoner charge for residenti al
custoners of $35 per nonth and then a flat energy
charge for all kW in all seasons of just over
12 cents per kW.

So for a lot of custoners, if they are
using kind of -- the breakpoint is sonewhere around a
t housand kWh-ish -- wait, no. I'msorry -- sorry.
I"'mtrying to think of the easiest way to say this.

If you are looking only at | guess what
we call the basic tariff rates, or we can call that
for purpose of this hearing the basic tariff rates
versus the full bill, that breakpoint where it is
cheaper to be a Wiite River custoner is probably right
around 2,500 kWh a nonth under the current rates.

If you ook at the full bill,
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i ncorporating things |ike the FAC and the
securitization charges and the MEEI A charge that is
currently in effect that wwll be going away as part of
this rate case, if you do include those things, the
breakpoint it | ooks like is probably closer to

a thousand -- just -- probably just under a thousand
kWh a nont h.

And | apol ogi ze and defer to ny witten
piece here if I've got nmy lines confused. Did that
answer your question?

Q Yeah. Thank you very nmuch. | did notice
in the stipulation and agreenent the fixed charge
doesn't ch- -- the residential fixed charge stays at
$13. Is that right?

A That is correct. And that's -- that was
a big inpetus behind why we put this together for the
Comm ssion. You know, just wanting -- wanting to nmake
sure there was an understandi ng that for custoners
usi ng kind of Iess than naybe a thousand kWh a nonth
versus over a thousand kWh a nonth, that the way that
this bill increase hits themis going to change.

So, as | said, there's -- there's a |ot
of nmoving pieces in Enpire's rates over the next three
to four nonths. So what's actually going to happen on

a per co- -- kWi basis is that the MEEI A charge drops
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of f and then the FAC base presunably changes in this
case sone how, sone way. | think all the parties that
had positions on it were higher than the current FAC
base.

And so you're going to have this weird
situation where each of the three rate phases is going
to raise the energy charge of custoners by about
nine-tenths of a cent per kWh for each nonth, but then
you're going to have that MEEIA charge dropping off,
but then you're going to have that FAC base change,
but that doesn't get recognized in the FAC rates until
si X nont hs out.

So all that is a very convoluted way of
sayi ng that because the custoner charge is changed,
but -- or is stable but things are noving with the per
kWh charge, custoners are going to -- different
custoners are going to experience different inpacts
over the -- the course of the three years.

Q And then it al so says that the sumrer
charges, so the summer per kilowatt hour, is it --
t hat staying constant too?

A No. I'msorry. That -- that had to do
wth the rate design aspect. So Enpire had proposed
to i npl enment a declining block sumrer char ge.

Q kay.
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A And they've had a stable flat custoner --
or flat summer charge for decades. So that was
| nportant to Staff not to disrupt custoners with that
change in this case.

Q Okay. | see. Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. Are there any
ot her Comm ssi oner questions for Ms. Lange?

kay. Let's go to our
recross-exam nation. And at the end of that, possibly
during a redirect, is when | would expect a notion on
what we want to do wth this docunent.

Recross-exam nation. M. OQpitz indicates
no questions. Consuners Council. 1'Il circle back
around to Consuner Council. Enpire. Public Counsel.

MR WLLIAMS: Thank you.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR W LLI AMVS:

Q Ms. Lange, what are you trying to show
with this docunent?

A Custoner inpact is going to vary by
custoner. Sone custoners when you account for the
changes that are happening wth whatever change occurs
to the FAC base and that MEEIA dropping off, in this
first inplenmentation, you know, they m ght see a 2 or

3 percent increase for about six nonths and then they
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m ght see an actual reduction briefly if nothing el se
changes with the FAC. And who knows what w |l happen
with the FAC six nonths from now.

But then after that, setting aside
t hose -- those FAC changes, securitization charge
changes, those sorts of things that are -- are set
outside of these rates, that the second rate
| npl ementation, the third rate inplenmentation is going
to, dependi ng on your choice of denom nator, give you
changes in the range of just under 5 percent to just
under 8 percent per case for -- for two cases.

And then | know there was al so questions
about the inpact of the deferred recovery of the
97 mllion and the Custonmer First. So -- | realized
sitting here just now | neglected to include incone
tax and | neglected to include the effects of
anortization expense.

But just at a broad level if the sane
rate design is used in a future rate case that occurs
exactly, you know -- rates go into effect exactly four
years fromwhen these first -- rates first go into
ef fect and nothing el se changes, that the inpact of
t hat woul d be just under two-tenths of a cent for the
deferred recovery and just under one-tenth of a cent

for the Custoner First.
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Again, recognizing nowthat | failed to
I ncl ude the anortization expense. Those would both
need to be factored up.

Q So can | take fromwhat you've just said
that this is giving an i dea about sone of the
magni t udes of inpacts, but it shouldn't be read just
mat hemati cal | y?

A |'ve -- 1've never net a custoner that
used exactly 1,000 kWh each and every nonth, even if
every other bit was right. And -- and every other bit
IS not going to be exact, that's correct.

Q And then you said it would be at | east
Six -- or six nonths for a fuel adjustnent clause. MW
recollection is there's a review period, so that it
woul d take at |least ten nonths. AmI| not correct?

A | -- | defer to the tariff on that one.
| -- 1 should have printed it out and | didn't.

Q | believe it's six-nmonth accunul ati on
periods and then a four-nonth review before the rate
change associated wth an accunul ation period actually
s i nplenented.

A That doesn't sound wong, but | -- | do
have to defer to the tariff.

Q Thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you, M. WIIians.
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of the room but we had finished the Conm ssi oner
guestions for Wtness Lange. D d you have any
Cross-exanf

MR. COFFMAN:  No. No, thank you.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

That takes us back to redirect.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR VANDERGRI FF:

Q Good afternoon, Ms. Lange.

A Good afternoon.

Q Al right. W're going to |lay sone
foundation for this. Do you recognize the -- the

denonstrative exhibit in front of you?

printer two hours ago.
MR. VANDERGRI FF: And with that, we'd
li ke to offer what should be marked as Exhi bit 180

I nto evi dence.

M. Coffrman, you had briefly stepped out

A | do.

Q How do you recognize it?

A | prepared it over the course of the |ast
coupl e of days.

Q Does it | ook substantially simlar or
exactly the sane as what you produced before?

A It -- it does. | picked it up off the
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MR. WLLIAMS: | have no objection -- |
have no objection as long as it's admtted as a
denonstrati ve evidence.

MR. VANDERGRI FF: As a denpb- -- as a
denonstrati ve.

JUDGE HATCHER: Any objections to the
adm ssion of the sheet |abeled Monthly Bill [|npact for
Resi dential Custoners |abel ed Denonstrative Exhibit
1807

Heari ng no objections, so admtted.

(Staff Exhibit 180 was received into
evi dence.)

JUDGE HATCHER: | believe you are
excused. Thank you very nuch for being here.

Appreci ate that.

Staff, any further w tnesses?

MR. VANDERGRI FF:  No further w tnesses,
Your Honor .

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you.

Ofice of Public Counsel. W have
di scussed this a bit off the record, but | wanted to
make sure that ny offer was on the record. That this
was an add-on itemto our schedule and if OPC woul d
like to present a witness to testify on or about the

stipulation, | would invite themto go ahead and do
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SoO.

MR. WLLIAMS: Thank you, no.

JUDCGE HATCHER: MECG sane offer. This
Is kind of a last-mnute addition. D d you want to
pro- -- produce any w tnesses?

MR OPITZ: | don't believe that's
necessary, but if the Conm ssion has questions, |
woul d offer that Ms. Maini can be avail able on Friday
nor ni ng.

JUDGE HATCHER: Noted. Thank you. Could
she be avail abl e on Thursday?

MR. OPITZ: M understanding is she could
not be.

JUDGE HATCHER: Okay. | wll contact all
of the counsel if we do request her to cone testify.

Consuners Council, sane offer.

MR. COFFMAN: | think we're good. | --
| -- if the Commssion is interested in |earning nore
about custoner service issues and our positions, |
woul d, you know, offer up Jim Thomas. | think we can
probably nake him available in sonme way. But
otherwse, | think we're good on the record.

JUDGE HATCHER: Thank you. That was all
of the participating parties we have. | believe that
concl udes the Conm ssion's questions on this add-on
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Item of the stipulation and agreenent.

Commi ssioners, I'mgoing to nake a few
announcenents, but we're wapping up for today.

For the counsel and those |istening
online, we will cone back tonorrow. W have three
| ssues; Custoner Experience, which will be the
appear ance of Conpany Wtness John Reed. W have the
FAC, and we have the Ozark -- the Ozark issue, which
wi || be the appearance of Conpany Wtness
Ber kstresser.

Are there any issues that | have left off
of our agenda? Do we have any itens, any points of
di scussion? W are ready to adjourn in the next
30 seconds or so.

M. WIIians.

MR, WLLIAMS: Are you going to take them
in the order in which they appear on the hearing
schedul e?

JUDGE HATCHER: | hadn't given that any
t hought. Do you have sonme suggestions?

MR WLLIAMS: | do not.

JUDGE HATCHER: | believe Custoner
Experience was |listed first.

MR WLLIAMS: The listing | see shows
John Reed for Custoner Experience, then the FAC
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| ssues, and then the Ozark Brane -- Beach crane
extension just M. Burkett -- Berktresser --
Ber kst resser.

M5. CARTER  Berkstresser. |f we perhaps
want to start with M. Berkstresser's issue? Just
because the -- | inagine the other ones will be | onger
and he's not included in the FAC party.

JUDGE HATCHER: Do any parties have any
I nput on taking M. Berkstresser and the Ozark issue
first?

MR. VANDERGRI FF: No obj ecti ons.

MR WLLIAMS: W're flexible. | just
t hought there m ght be sone acconmmopdati ons.

JUDGE HATCHER: Sold. M. Berkstresser,
if you are listening, please be prepared to testify at
9:00 aam If heis not, | trust his counsel wl|
informhim So that takes care of Ozark. That w |
be 9:00 a. m

My inclination would then be to go to
Reed. Because, again that will be a single wtness,
single issue. | predict that it would likely be
shorter than the FAC. And then we conclude on the FAC
with the -- the normal introduction of w tnesses,
cross, Commi ssion. |'m seeing nods. Everyone agrees?

Are there any opposing or alternate discussion itens?
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MR, WLLIAMS: Judge, |I'Ill point out that
M. Reed is a Conpany witness on both the FAC and the
custoner experience. | don't know if they want to
bring hi mup and down or what order they may want to
take himin, but.

JUDGE HATCHER: No, I'mgoing to -- |I'm
going to be doing it just as awkward tonorrow as | did
It today. We'll have M. Berkstresser cone up for
Cust omer Experience. Depending on how that goes, we
m ght dismss him-- no, because he's a Conpany
wtness. He would be one of the first ones up. W'l|
deal with that -- that's a gane-tine decision. Good
point, M. WIllianms. Thank you.

Al right. That is it. Last
announcenent. Tonorrow 9:00 a.m, the Ozark issue
wth M. Berkstresser, foll owed by Custoner
Experience. Yeah, we're going to have to put in the
Cust onmer Experience in there in the mddle. Yeah,
we'll go Ozark first, Custoner Experience second, FAC
t hi rd.

Thank you all. W are -- yes,

M. Flaherty.

MR. FLAHERTY: Yes. |[|I'mnot going to
participate tonorrow. Is it okay if |I'mexcused from
tonorrow s hearing?
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MR. FLAHERTY: Thank you very nuch.
JUDGE HATCHER: |I'mrefraining from

maki ng dad j okes.

Thank you al | .

(Wher eupon, the proceedi ngs were

2025 at 9:00 a.m)

JUDGE HATCHER: Yes, that would be fine.

Excellent. W are adjourned for the day.

adjourned at 2:47 p.m, to reconvene on COctober 16,
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CERTI FI CATE OF REPORTER

|, Tracy Thorpe Taylor, CCR No. 939, wthin the
State of M ssouri, do hereby certify that the
testinony appearing in the foregoing matter was duly
sworn by nme; that the testinony of said wtnesses was
taken by nme to the best of ny ability and thereafter
reduced to typewiting under ny direction; that I am
nei t her counsel for, related to, nor enployed by any
of the parties to the action in which this nmatter was
taken, and further, that I amnot a relative or
enpl oyee of any attorney or counsel enployed by the
parties thereto, nor financially or otherw se

interested in the outcone of the action.

Oy 3 Jﬁfﬂ(‘”

Tr acy Thoréé Tayl or, , RPR
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